

CHAPTER 8 Continuing Obligations

This chapter deals with the Issuers continuing obligations and one of its objectives is to implement the relevant provisions of Directive 2004/109/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 December 2004 on the harmonisation of transparency requirements in relation to information about issuers whose securities are admitted to trading on a regulated market and Directive 2007/14/EC of 8 March 2007. These requirements do not exclude the ongoing obligations required in other chapters of these Listing Rules.

Deleted: These requirements do not exclude the ongoing obligations.

Preliminary

8.1. Once an Issuer's Securities have been duly authorised as admissible to listing on a Regulated Market in Malta, the Issuer shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the continuing obligations of these Listing Rules at all times.

8.2. The Listing Authority may, at any time, require an Issuer to publish such information in such form and within such time limits as it considers appropriate to protect investors or to ensure the smooth operation of the market.

8.3. If an Issuer fails to comply with the requirement under Listing Rules 8.1 or 8.2, the Listing Authority may itself publish the information, if the same is available to it, after giving the Issuer an opportunity to make representations as to why it should not be published.

8.4. Where Malta is the home Member State, the Listing Authority may subject Issuers to obligations more stringent than those provided for hereafter or to additional obligations, provided that they apply generally to all Issuers or to all Issuers of a given Class.

8.5. The provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to Units issued by collective investment undertakings other than the closed-end type, or to Units acquired or disposed of in such collective investment undertakings.

8.5a. Subject to any exemptions set out herein, this Chapter applies to an Issuer:

8.5a.1 whose Securities are admitted to listing on a Regulated Market; and

8.5a.2 whose Home Member State is Malta.

8.5b. For the purposes of Listing Rule 8.5a, Malta shall be deemed to be the "Home Member State" if:

8.5b.1 in the case of an Issuer of Debt Securities the denomination per unit of which is less than one thousand Euro or an Issuer of shares:

8.5b.1.1 the Issuer has its registered office in Malta;

8.5b.1.2 the Issuer is incorporated or registered in a non-EU or EEA State and Malta is the Member State in which it is required to file the annual information with the Listing Authority in terms of Listing Rule 5.29;

8.5b.2 in the case of an Issuer not covered by Listing Rule 8.5b.1, Malta is the Member State chosen by the Issuer from among the Member States in which the Issuer has its registered office and those Member States which have admitted its Securities to trading on a Regulated Market on their territory.

8.5c. For the purposes of this Chapter, Malta shall be deemed to be the "Host Member State" where it is not the Home Member State of the Issuer and securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in Malta.

8.5d. Where, pursuant to these Listing Rules, the Issuer may choose its Home Member State, the Issuer may choose only one Member State as its Home Member State. Its choice shall remain valid for at least three years unless its Securities are no longer admitted to trading on any Regulated Market in the Community.

- Deleted: . Introduction [1]
- Deleted: [2]
- Formatted: ... [1]
- Deleted: 8.1 . The provis [2]
- Inserted: 2 . Once an Iss [3]
- Formatted: ... [4]
- Comment: Should be am [5]
- Deleted: 3
- Inserted: 3 . The Listing [6]
- Formatted: ... [7]
- Deleted: 4
- Inserted: 4 . If an Issuer [8]
- Deleted: 3
- Inserted: 3 or 8.
- Deleted: 4
- Inserted: 4, the Listing [9]
- Deleted:
- Deleted: 5
- Inserted: 5 . Where Ma [10]
- Formatted: ... [11]
- Formatted: ... [12]
- Deleted: Introduction
- Formatted: ... [13]
- Deleted: 6
- Inserted: 6
- Deleted: 1
- Inserted: 1 . Subject to [14]
- Deleted: 6
- Inserted: 6
- Deleted: 1
- Deleted: trading
- Inserted: 1.1 . whose S [15]
- Inserted: trading on a R [16]
- Deleted: 6
- Inserted: 6
- Deleted: 1
- Inserted: 1.2 . whose H [17]
- Deleted: 7
- Inserted: 7
- Deleted: 2
- Inserted: 2 . For the pu [18]
- Deleted: this Chapter
- Deleted: 6
- Inserted: 6
- Deleted: means
- Deleted: 7
- Inserted: 7
- Deleted: 2
- Inserted: 2.1 . in the ca [19]
- Deleted: 7
- Inserted: 7
- Deleted: 2
- Inserted: 2.1
- Deleted: . Malta is the [20]
- Inserted: . Malta is the [21]
- ... [22]
- ... [23]
- ... [24]
- [25]

8.5e ~~The choice referred to in Listing Rule 8.5b.2 shall be disclosed in terms of Listing Rules 8.141d to 8.141j¹~~

Company Announcements

- 8.6 The object of a Company Announcement is to bring useful and relevant facts to the attention of the market. Accordingly, Issuers shall be responsible to ensure that a Company Announcement is precise, clear and truthful, and does not contain promotional, ambiguous, irrelevant or confusing material.
- 8.7 An Issuer or a person who has applied for admission to trading on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent, where applicable, shall make a Company Announcement in the English or Maltese language without delay through the Regulated Market with regards to the following:
- 8.7.1 price-sensitive facts which arise in its sphere of activity and which are not public knowledge;
 - 8.7.2 any information concerning the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries necessary to avoid the establishment of a false market in its Securities;
 - 8.7.3 the date fixed for any board meeting of the Issuer at which the declaration or recommendation or payment of a dividend on Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing is expected to be decided, or at which any Announcement of the profits or losses in respect of any year, half-year or other period is to be approved for publication;
 - 8.7.4 any decision by the board of Directors of the Issuer to declare any dividend or other distribution on Securities Admissible to Listing or not to declare any dividend or interest payment on Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing or relating to profits;
 - 8.7.5 any change in the Officers of the Issuer (see Listing Rules 8.16 to 8.19);
 - 8.7.6 the filing of a winding-up application;
 - 8.7.7 any resolution for the merger or amalgamation of the Issuer and any agreement entered into in connection with any acquisition or realisation of assets or any transaction outside the ordinary course of business of the Issuer and/or its Subsidiaries which is likely to materially affect the price of its Securities;
 - 8.7.8 the information contained in the notification submitted by the Shareholder in terms of Listing Rule 8.117;
 - 8.7.9 the total number of voting rights and capital at the end of each calendar month during which an increase or decrease of such total number has occurred;
 - 8.7.10 the proportion of the Issuer's holding in its own Equity Securities, following an acquisition or sale of its own Equity Securities in terms of Listing Rule 12.12. Such Company Announcement shall be made by not later than four trading days following the acquisition or sale;
 - 8.7.11 any material change to its capital structure including the structure of its Debt Securities admitted to listing, except that notification of a new issue may be delayed while an offer or underwriting is in progress;

- Deleted: 10
- Inserted: 9
- Deleted: 4
- Formatted: Not Highlight
- Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 2 cm
- Deleted: 9
- Inserted: 10
- Deleted: 5
- Inserted: 5 . The choice referred to in Listing Rule 8.5b.2
- Inserted: 4 shall be disclosed in terms of Listing Rul
- Formatted: Not Highlight
- Formatted: Not Highlight
- Deleted: e...
- Formatted: Not Highlight
- Deleted: 8.1 .
- Deleted: This Chapter establishes requirements in relation to the disclosure of ongoing information about Issuers whose securities are already admitted to trading on a Regulated Market situated or operating within a Member State. ¶
8.2 . The provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to Units issued by collective investment undertakings other than the closed-end type, or to Units acquired or disposed of in such collective investment undertakings. ¶
8.3 . Once a Security is authorised as Admissible to listing, the Issuer shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the continuing obligations of these Listing Rules at all times.¶
8.4 . The Issuer shall comply with the continuing obligations to provide information and if it fails to do so, the Listing Authority may itself publish any relevant information it may have in its possession after having heard the representation of the Issuer.¶
8.5 . Where Malta is the home Member State, the Listing Authority may subject Issuers to obligations more stringent than those provided for hereafter or to additional obligations, provided that they apply generally to all Issuers or to all Issuers of a given Class.
- Deleted: ¶
- Deleted: cognised Investment Exchange
- Deleted: 8
- Deleted: 21

¹ Art 2

- 8.7.12 Debt Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing:
- 8.7.12.1 any new issues of Debt Securities;
 - 8.7.12.2 any guarantee or security thereof; and
 - 8.7.12.3 a statement, where applicable, indicating where the audited Annual Accounts of any guarantor in line with the requirements of Listing Rule 9.36 are available to the public.

Without prejudice to the Prevention of Market Abuse Act, Listing Rules 8.7.12.1, 8.7.12.2 and 8.7.12.3 shall not apply to a public international body of which at least one Member State is member.

- 8.7.13 any change in the rights;
 - 8.7.13.1 attaching to the various Classes of shares, including changes in the rights attaching to derivative securities issued by the Issuer itself and giving access to the shares of that Issuer;
 - 8.7.13.2 of holders of securities other than shares, including changes in the terms and conditions of these securities which could indirectly affect those rights, resulting in particular, from a change in loan terms or in interest rates.
- 8.7.14 the effect, if any, of any issue of further Securities on the terms of the exercise of rights under options, warrants and convertible Securities;
- 8.7.15 the results of any new issue or Public Offer of Securities. Where the Shares are subject to an underwriting arrangement the Issuer may at its discretion, delay notifying the Listing Authority until the obligations by the underwriter to take or procure others to take Securities are finally determined or lapse. In the case of an issue or offer of Shares which is not underwritten, notification of the result must be made as soon as it is known;
- 8.7.16 any sale of Shares in another Company resulting in a Company ceasing to be a Subsidiary and any acquisition of Shares of an unquoted Company;
- 8.7.17 all resolutions put to a general meeting of an Issuer which are not Ordinary Business and immediately after such meeting whether or not the resolutions were carried;
- 8.7.18 any change of address of the registered office of the Issuer;
- 8.7.19 any proposed changes to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer which in any event must comply with the requirements of this Chapter;
- 8.7.20 the matters referred to in Listing Rule 1.21 (Discontinuation of Listing);
- 8.7.21 the matters referred to in Listing Rules 9.35 (preliminary results), 9.40.6 (profit forecast) and 9.44j (half-yearly reports);
- 8.7.22 where a valuation has been conducted on the fixed assets of the Issuer and/or its Subsidiaries including a copy of the valuation reports or a statement indicating where such report has been made to the public;
- 8.7.23 a statement indicating where the audited Annual Accounts required in terms of Listing Rule 9.36 ~~has~~ been made available to the public.

Deleted: 2

Deleted: ave

- 8.8 The requirements of Listing Rules 8.7 are in addition to any specific requirements regarding Company Announcements contained in these Listing Rules.
- 8.9 Information that is required to be the subject of a Company Announcement must not be given to anyone else before it has been so announced in accordance with Listing Rule 8.7.
- 8.10 An Issuer must take all reasonable care to ensure that any statement or forecast or any other information provided in a Company Announcement is not misleading, false or deceptive and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such statement, forecast or other information.
- 8.11 *Dispensation*
- 8.12 If the Issuer considers that announcements and/or disclosure to the public of information required by these Listing Rules might prejudice the Issuer's legitimate interests, the Issuer must seek a dispensation from the relevant requirement by written notice to the Listing Authority to that effect.
- Disclosure in the Annual Report*
- 8.13, 8.14, 8.15 *Directors and Senior Officers*
- 8.16 A Company Announcement made in terms of 8.7.5 shall contain the following information in respect of any new Director appointed to its board of Directors, or any Senior Officer, unless such details have already been disclosed in Prospectus or other Circular published by the Issuer:
- 8.16.1 the full name (and if relevant, any former name or names), residential address and function in the Issuer and an indication of the principal activities performed by them outside the Issuer where these are significant with respect to the Issuer;
- 8.16.2 details of all Directorships held by such Director or Senior Officer in any other Listed Company at any time in the previous five (5) years, indicating whether or not the individual is still a Director;
- 8.16.3 any convictions of such persons in relation to criminal offences punishable by imprisonment or details of any pending criminal proceedings against such persons for such offences;
- 8.16.4 details of any bankruptcies or individual voluntary arrangements of such person;
- 8.16.5 details of any creditors' voluntary winding-up, winding-up by the court or reconstruction of any Company where such person was a partner or Director with an executive function at the time of or within the twelve (12) months preceding such events;
- 8.16.6 details of any dissolution of any partnerships for reasons of bankruptcy or the existence of grounds of sufficient gravity to warrant dissolution where such person was a partner at the time of or within the twelve (12) months preceding such events;
- 8.16.7 details of any public criticisms of such person by statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated professional bodies) which have not been subsequently withdrawn by the relevant authority or body and whether such person has ever been disqualified by a court

Deleted: Where securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in Malta and Malta is the only host Member or EEA State, an Issuer or a person who has applied for admission to trading on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent is obliged to make a Company Announcement in terms of Listing Rules 8.7.8, 8.7.9, 8.7.10 8.7.12 and 8.7.13, and makes such information available to the Officially Appointed Mechanism'

Comment: Moved to Chapter 9 – Contents of Annual Financial Report

Deleted: The provisions of Listing Rules 8.14 and 8.15 shall apply to accounting periods commencing on or after 20 May 2006.¶

8.14 . An Issuer shall include in the Company's Annual Report the following: ¶

8.14.1 . the structure of their Capital, including securities which are not admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in a Member State, where appropriate with an indication of the different Classes of shares and, for each Class of shares, the rights and obligations attaching to it and the percentage of total share capital that it represents;¶

8.14.2 . any restrictions on the transfer of securities, such as limitations on the holding of securities or the need to obtain the approval of the Company or other holders of securities;¶

8.14.3 . any direct and indirect shareholdings (including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structures and cross-shareholdings) in excess of 5% of the share Capital; ¶

8.14.4 . the holders of any securities with special control rights and a description of those rights;¶

8.14.5 . the system of control of any employee share scheme where the control rights are not exercised directly by the employees;¶

8.14.6 . any restriction on voting rights, such as limitations of the voting rights of holders of a given percentage or number of votes, deadlines for exercising voting rights, or systems whereby, with the company's cooperation, the financial rights attaching to securities are separated from the holding of securities;¶

8.14.7 . any agreements between shareholders which are known to the Company and may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or voting rights;¶

8.14.8 . the rules governing the appointment and replacement of Board members and the ... [27]

from acting as a Director of a Company or from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any Company; and

- 8.16.8 whether such person was the subject of any order, judgement or ruling of any court of competent jurisdiction, tribunal or any other regulatory authority in Malta or overseas, permanently or temporarily prohibiting him from acting as an Investment Adviser, dealer in Securities, Director or employee of a Financial Institution and from engaging in any type of business practice or activity; or

if there is no such information to be disclosed regarding Listing Rules 8.16.3 to 8.16.8, an appropriate negative statement to that effect.

- 8.17 The Company Announcement required under Listing Rule 8.7.5 must be made immediately after the Issuer becomes aware of the appointment of the relevant Director or Senior Officer.
- 8.18 The Company Announcement required by Listing Rule 8.7.5 must state the effective date of the change if it is not with immediate effect. If the effective date is not yet known or has not yet been determined, the notification should state this fact. The Issuer must subsequently announce that information when the effective date has been decided.
- 8.19 In the case of an appointment, the Issuer's notification must:
- 8.19.1 state whether the position is executive or non-executive; and
- 8.19.2 state the nature of any specific function or responsibility of the position.

Rights of Holders of Securities

- 8.20 An Issuer having Equity Shares authorised as Admissible to Listing must ensure equality of treatment for all holders of such Equity Shares who are in the same position.
- 8.21 A Company having Debt Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing must ensure equality of treatment for all holders of such Securities of the same Class in respect of all rights attaching to such Securities.
- 8.22 An Issuer must obtain the consent of the holders of its Equity Shares before any major Subsidiary Undertaking of the Issuer makes any issue for cash of Equity Securities so as materially to dilute the Issuer's percentage interest in Equity Shares or Equity Securities of that Subsidiary Undertaking. For the purposes of this Listing Rule, a Subsidiary Undertaking which represents twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the aggregate of the Share capital and reserves or profits (after deducting all charges except taxation and excluding extraordinary items) of a Group will be regarded as a major Subsidiary Undertaking.
- 8.23 Shareholders shall not be prevented from exercising their rights by proxy, subject to the law of the country in which the Issuer is incorporated.

Information requirements for Issuers whose shares are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market

- 8.24 An Issuer shall ensure that all the facilities and information necessary to enable holders of shares to exercise their rights are available in Malta, where Malta is the Home Member State and that the integrity of data is preserved.
- 8.25 The Issuer shall;

- 8.25.1 provide information on the place, time and agenda of meetings, the total number of shares and voting rights and the rights of holders entitled to participate in meetings;
 - 8.25.2 make available a proxy form in terms of Listing Rules 10.16 and 10.17, on paper or, where applicable, by electronic means, to each person entitled to vote at a shareholders' meeting, together with the notice concerning the meeting or, on request, after an Announcement of the meeting;
 - 8.25.3 at the request of a shareholder, designate as its agent a financial or credit institution through which such shareholder may exercise his financial rights; and
 - 8.25.4 publish notices or distribute Circulars concerning the allocation and payment of dividends and the Issuer of new shares, including information on any arrangements for allotment, subscription, cancellation or conversion.
- 8.26 If a Circular is issued to the holders of any particular Class of Security, the Issuer must issue a copy or summary of that Circular to all other holders of its Securities which are authorised as Admissible to Listing unless the contents of that Circular are irrelevant to them.
- 8.27 Where available, airmail or an equivalent service that is no slower must be used when sending documents to holders of Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing residing outside Malta.
- 8.28 All communications to holders of Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing must be made by means of the postal services and airmail services in the case of shareholders residing outside Malta, to the registered address of each holder registered as such on the date when such notice is communicated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer's obligation of circulating any information to shareholders other than Annual Accounts shall be duly satisfied if the Issuer sends a notice to the registered address of each Shareholder by means of the postal service advising that such information has been posted on a website designated therein and that such document is available in printed format upon written request made by any shareholder.
- 8.29 Notwithstanding the provisions of Listing Rule 8.28, the Issuer shall use Electronic means to circulate information other than Annual Accounts, provided such a decision is taken in a general meeting and meets at least the following conditions:
- 8.29.1 the use of Electronic means shall in no way depend upon the location of the seat or residence of the Shareholder or, in the cases referred to in Listing Rule 8.11~~1~~, of the natural or legal persons;
 - 8.29.2 identification arrangements shall be put in place so that the shareholders, or the natural or legal persons entitled to exercise or to direct the exercise of voting rights, are effectively informed;
 - 8.29.3 shareholders, or in the cases referred to in Listing Rule 8.11~~1~~, the natural or legal persons entitled to acquire, dispose of or exercise voting rights, shall be contacted in writing to request their consent for the use of Electronic means for conveying information and, if they do not object within a reasonable period of time, their consent shall be deemed to be given. They shall be able to request, at any time in the future, that information be conveyed in writing; and

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

8.29.4 any apportionment of the costs entailed in the conveyance of such information by Electronic means shall be determined by the Issuer in compliance with the principle of equal treatment.

Information requirements & venue for Issuers whose Debt Securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market

8.30 An Issuer of Debt Securities shall ensure that all the facilities and information necessary to enable Debt Securities holders to exercise their rights are publicly available in Malta, when Malta is the Home Member State and the integrity of data is preserved.

8.31 Debt Securities holders shall not be prevented from exercising their rights by proxy, subject to the law of country in which the Issuer is incorporated.

8.32 The Issuer shall, where applicable -

8.32.1 publish notices or distribute Circulars concerning the place, time and agenda of meetings of Debt Securities holders, the payment of interest, the exercise of any conversion, exchange, subscription or cancellation rights, and repayment, as well as the right of those holders to participate therein;

8.32.2 make available a proxy form in terms of Listing Rules 10.16 and 10.17 on paper or by electronic means, to each person entitled to vote at a meeting of Debt Securities holders, together with the notice concerning the meeting or, on request, after an Announcement of the meeting; and

8.32.3 at the request of any holder of Debt Securities, designate as its agent a financial or credit institution through which the Debt Securities holder may exercise his financial rights.

8.33 If only holders of Debt Securities whose denomination per unit amounts to at least ~~€50,000~~, or, in the case of Debt Securities denominated in currency other than Lm whose denomination per unit is, at the date of the issue, equivalent to at least ~~€50,000~~, are to be invited to a meeting, the Issuer may choose as venue any Member or EEA State, provide that all the facilities and information necessary to enable such holders to exercise their rights are made available in that Member or EEA State.

Deleted: Lm 21,465

Deleted: Lm 21,465

8.34 For the purposes of conveying information to Debt Securities holders, the Issuer shall use electronic means, provided such a decision is taken in a general meeting and meets at least the following conditions:

8.34.1 the use of Electronic means shall in no way depend upon the location of the seat or residence of the debt security holder or of a proxy representing that holder;

8.34.2 identification arrangements shall be put in place so that Debt Securities holders are effectively informed;

8.34.3 Debt Securities holders shall be contacted in writing to request their consent for the use of Electronic means for conveying information and if they do not object within a reasonable period of time, not exceeding fourteen (14) days, their consent shall be deemed to be given. They shall be able to request, at any time in the future, that information be conveyed in writing; and

8.34.4 any apportionment of the costs entailed in the conveyance of information by Electronic means shall be determined by the Issuer in compliance with the principle of equal treatment.

- 8.35 The provisions of Listing Rules 8.7.12, 8.32, 8.33 and 8.34 shall not apply to securities admitted to trading on a Regulated Market issued by Member or EEA States or their regional or local authorities.

Formatted: Font: (Default)
Times New Roman, 11 pt

Corporate Governance

- 8.36 An Issuer whose Securities are listed should endeavour to adopt the Principles outlined in Appendix 8.1. The Principles are not applicable to Collective Investment Schemes.
- 8.37 Issuers shall be required to include in their annual report a statement of compliance providing an explanation of the extent to which they have adopted the Principles.
- 8.38 Issuers shall include in their annual report the effective measures that they have taken to ensure compliance throughout the accounting period with the Principles.
- 8.39 The Issuer's Auditors are to include a report in the annual report on the statement of compliance and the report to shareholders made by Issuer and the board of Directors of the Issuer respectively.

Interests of Directors and Connected Persons

- 8.40 Copies of each Director's service contract must be made available for inspection by any person:
- 8.40.1 at the place of the annual general meeting for at least fifteen (15) minutes prior to and during the meeting; and
 - 8.40.2 at the registered office of the Issuer, or in the case of an Oversea Company, at the offices of any Paying Agent in Malta during Normal Business Hours.
- 8.41 Where one (1) Director's service contract covers both Directors and executive Officers, the Issuer must make available for inspection in accordance with Listing Rule 8.40 a memorandum of the terms of the contract which relate to the Directors only.
- 8.42 Directors' service contracts available for inspection must disclose or have attached to them the following information;
- 8.42.1 the name of the contracting parties;
 - 8.42.2 the date of the contract, the unexpired term and details of any notice periods;
 - 8.42.3 full particulars of the Directors' emoluments, including salary and all other benefits;
 - 8.42.4 any commission or profit sharing arrangements;
 - 8.42.5 any provision for compensation payable upon early termination of the contract; and
 - 8.42.6 details of any other arrangements which are necessary to enable investors to estimate the possible liability of the Issuer upon early termination of the contract.
- 8.43 An Issuer not subject to the CA must notify to the Listing Authority equivalent information to that required under Listing Rule 8.42 so far as such information is known to the Issuer. Any notification under this Listing Rule must be made without delay following the Issuer becoming aware of the relevant information.

8.44 An Issuer must require each of its Directors to disclose to it all information which the Issuer needs in order to comply with Listing Rule 8.42 or 8.43 (so far as that information is known to the Director or could with reasonable diligence be ascertained by the Director), as soon as possible and not later than the fifth Business Day following the day on which the existence of the interest to which the information relates comes to the Director's knowledge. An Issuer must require each of its Directors at such times as it deems necessary or desirable to confirm that he has made all due enquiry of his Connected Persons.

Transactions by Directors and Officers of Issuers

8.45 Subject to Listing Rule 8.46 below, an Issuer must require:

8.45.1 its Directors; and

8.45.2 any employee of the Issuer or Director or employee of a Subsidiary Undertaking or Parent Undertaking of the Issuer who, because of his office or employment in the Issuer or Subsidiary Undertaking or Parent Undertaking, is likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the Issuer ("Senior Officer")

to comply with an internal code of dealing which must be no less exacting than those of Listing Rules 8.46 to 8.55 below and must take all proper and reasonable steps to ensure such compliance.

8.46 Listing Rule 8.45 does not apply if such dealings are entered into by such persons:

8.46.1 in the ordinary course of business by a Securities dealing business; or

8.46.2 on behalf of third parties by the Issuer or any other member of its Group.

8.47 Issuers may impose more rigorous restrictions upon dealings by Directors and Senior Officers if they so wish.

8.48 A Director or senior Officer shall not deal directly or indirectly in any of the Securities of the Issuer of which he is a Director or Senior Officer:

8.48.1 at any time when he is in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to those Securities;

8.48.2 prior to the Announcement of matters of an exceptional nature involving unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the market price of the Securities of the Issuer;

8.48.3 on considerations of a short-term nature;

8.48.4 without giving advance written notice to the Chairman, or one or more other Directors designated for this purpose. In his own case, the Chairman, or such other designated Director, shall not deal without giving advance notice to the board of Directors of such Company or any other designated Director as appropriate;

8.48.5 during such other period as may be established by the Listing Authority from time to time.

8.49 The same restrictions apply to dealings by a Director or Senior Officer in the Securities of any other Listed Company when by virtue of his position as a Director or senior Officer of the Issuer, he is in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to those Securities.

8.50 During the period of two (2) months immediately preceding the preliminary notification of the Issuer's annual results and of the notification of the half-yearly results or during a period of one (1) month if the Issuer reports the results on a

quarterly basis (except in the final quarter of a Financial Year when the relevant period shall be two (2) months), a Director or Senior Officer shall not purchase any Securities of the Issuer nor shall he sell any such Securities unless the circumstances are exceptional, for example where a pressing financial commitment has to be met and this with the prior written approval of the Listing Authority.

- 8.51 If the approval of the Listing Authority to deal in exceptional circumstances has been granted, the Issuer must notify the Listing Authority of such deals immediately after these have been concluded.
- 8.52 The restrictions on dealings contained in this Chapter shall be regarded as equally applicable to any dealings by any Connected Person or any investment manager acting on behalf of a Director or Senior Officer or on behalf of any Connected Person where either he or any Connected Person has funds under management with that investment manager, whether or not discretionary. It is the duty of the Director or Senior Officer (as far as is consistent with his duties of confidentiality to his Company) to seek to prohibit any such dealing by any Connected Person at a time when he himself is not free to deal.
- 8.53 Where a Director or senior Officer is a sole trustee (other than a bare trustee), the provisions of Listing Rules 8.45 to 8.54 will apply, as if he were dealing on his own account. Where a Director or Senior Officer is a co-trustee (other than a bare trustee), he must advise his co-trustees of the name of the Issuer of which he is a Director or Senior Officer. If the Director is not a beneficiary, a dealing in his Issuer's Securities undertaken by that trust will not be regarded as a dealing by the Director or Senior Officer for the purposes of this Listing Rule, where the decision to deal is taken by the other trustees acting independently of the Director or Senior Officer or by investment managers on behalf of the trustees. The other trustees or the investment managers will be assumed to have acted independently of the Director for this purpose where they:
- 8.53.1 have taken the decision to deal without consultation with, or other involvement of, the Director or Senior Officer concerned; or
- 8.53.2 if they have delegated the decision making to a committee of which the Director or Senior Officer is not a member.
- 8.54 Any employee of the Issuer or Director or employee of a Subsidiary Undertaking or Parent Undertaking of the Issuer or any other person occupying a position of trust who, because of his office or employment in the Listed Company or Subsidiary Undertaking or Parent Undertaking, is in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the Issuer shall comply with the terms of Listing Rule 8.48 as though they were Directors of the Issuer.
- 8.55 No dealings in any Securities may be effected by or on behalf of an Issuer or any other member of its Group at a time when, under the provisions of this Chapter, a Director of the Issuer would be prohibited from dealing in its Securities, unless such dealings are entered into:
- 8.55.1 in the ordinary course of business by a Securities dealing business; or
- 8.55.2 on behalf of third parties by the Issuer or any other member of its Group.

Audit Committee

- 8.56 The Issuer shall establish and maintain an Audit Committee of at least three (3) members, the majority of whom shall be non-executive Directors. The Committee shall be chaired by a non-executive Director.

- 8.57 The Issuer shall determine the terms of reference, life span, composition, role and function of such committee and shall establish, maintain and develop appropriate reporting procedures.
- 8.58 The Audit Committee's primary purpose is to protect the interests of the company's shareholders and assist the Directors in conducting their role effectively so that the company's decision-making capability and the accuracy of its reporting and financial results are maintained at a high level at all times.
- 8.59 The Issuer shall ensure that the Audit Committee establishes internal procedures and shall monitor these on a regular basis.
- 8.60 The Audit Committee shall establish and maintain access between the internal and external Auditors of the Company and shall ensure that this is open and constructive.
- 8.61 The Audit Committee shall meet, at least, six times a year preferably every two (2) months. The head of Internal Audit should attend the meetings of this Committee.
- 8.62 The main role and responsibilities of the audit committee shall be:
- 8.62.1 to review procedures and assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems, including financial reporting;
 - 8.62.2 to assist the Board of Directors in monitoring the integrity of the financial statements, the internal control structures, the financial reporting processes and financial policies of the company;
 - 8.62.3 to maintain communications on such matters between the Board, management, the independent Auditors and the internal Auditors;
 - 8.62.4 to review the company's internal financial control system and, unless addressed by a separate risk committee or the Board itself, risk management systems;
 - 8.62.5 to monitor and review the effectiveness of the company's internal audit function on a regular basis;
 - 8.62.6 to make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment of the external Auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external Auditor following appointment by the shareholders in general meeting;
 - 8.62.7 to monitor and review the external Auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness; and
 - 8.62.8 to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external Auditor to supply non-audit services.
- 8.63 When the Audit Committee's monitoring and review activities reveal cause for concern or scope for improvement, it shall make recommendations to the Board on action needed to address the issue or make improvements. The Board shall satisfy itself that any issues raised by the Audit Committee and the external Auditor and communicated to the Board have been adequately addressed.
- 8.64 The Issuer shall inform the Listing Authority how the Audit Committee is constituted, who the members are and its terms of reference. The Issuer shall inform the Listing Authority, without delay, of any changes to the above.

Transactions with Related Parties

General

- 8.65 These provisions shall apply so as to ensure that the Issuer draws attention to the possibility that its financial position and profit or loss may be affected or have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.
- 8.66 In considering each possible related party relationship, attention should be directed to the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form.
- 8.67 The following are not necessarily related parties:
- 8.67.1 two entities simply because they have a Director or other member of key management personnel in common;
 - 8.67.2 two venturers simply because they share joint control over a joint venture;
 - 8.67.3 providers of finance, trade unions, public utilities, and government departments and agencies; simply by virtue of their normal dealings with an entity;
 - 8.67.4 a customer, supplier, franchisor, distributor or general agent with whom an entity transacts a significant volume of business, merely by virtue of the resulting economic dependence; and
 - 8.67.5 where the consideration or value of the related party transaction is in the aggregate Lm 20,000 or less the Issuer is exempt from the Company Announcement, Circular and shareholder's approval requirements contained in this Chapter.

Where the Audit Committee is not acceptable to the Listing Authority

- 8.68 When an Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) proposes to enter into a transaction with a Related Party and either the Audit Committee is not considered by the Listing Authority as independent or is not providing sufficient guarantees/safeguards which protect the rights of the shareholders, then the Issuer shall:
- 8.68.1 make a Company Announcement which shall contain:
 - 8.68.1.1 the nature and details of the transaction;
 - 8.68.1.2 the name of the Related Party concerned; and
 - 8.68.1.3 details of the nature and extent of the interest of the Related Party in the transaction;
 - 8.68.2 send a Circular to its shareholders containing the information required by Listing Rule 8.69; and
 - 8.68.3 obtain the approval of its shareholders either prior to the transaction being entered into or, if it is expressed to be conditional on such approval, prior to completion of the transaction and, where applicable, ensure that the Related Party itself abstains from voting on the relevant resolution.
- 8.69 Where a meeting of the shareholders has been called to approve a transaction in terms of Listing Rule 8.68.3 and, after the date of the notice of meeting but prior to the meeting itself, a party to that transaction has become a Related Party;
- 8.69.1 the Issuer shall ensure that the Related Party concerned abstains from voting on the relevant resolution; and

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

8.69.2 a further Circular is dispatched, for receipt by shareholders prior to the meeting, containing the details of the transaction which were not contained in the original Circular accompanying the notice of meeting.

8.70 The variation or novation of an existing agreement between the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) and a Related Party will be subject to the provisions of Listing Rule 8.68 whether or not, at the time the original agreement was entered into, that party was a Related Party.

Exemptions

8.71 Where the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) proposes to enter into a transaction with a Related Party it need not be subject to prior approval of the Issuer's shareholders in general meeting and it need not send a Circular to its shareholders if:

8.71.1 the Issuer maintains an independent Audit Committee in terms of Listing Rules;

8.71.2 it is an Oversea Company with a Secondary Listing;

8.71.3 the transaction is an issue of new Securities either:

8.71.3.1 for cash by the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) pursuant to an opportunity which (so far as is practicable) is made available to all holders of the Issuer's Securities (or to all holders of a relevant Class of its Securities) on the same terms; or

8.71.3.2 made pursuant to the exercise of conversion or subscription rights attaching to a Class of Securities Admissible to Listing or previously approved by the Issuer's shareholders in general meeting;

8.71.4 the transaction:

8.71.4.1 involves the receipt of any asset (including cash or Securities of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) by a Director of the Issuer, its Parent Undertaking or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings; or

8.71.4.2 is a grant of an option or other right to a Director of the Issuer, its Parent Undertaking, or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings to acquire (whether or not for consideration) any asset (including cash or new or existing Securities of the Issuer or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings);

in accordance with the terms of either an employee share scheme or a long-term incentive scheme;

8.71.5 the transaction is a grant of credit (including the lending of money or the guaranteeing of a loan) to the Related Party or, on an unsecured basis, by the Related Party:

8.71.5.1 upon normal commercial terms; or

8.71.5.2 in amount and on terms no more favourable than those offered to employees of the Group generally;

8.71.6 the transaction is the grant of an indemnity to a Director of the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) to the extent not prohibited by Article 148 of the CA, or the maintenance of a contract of insurance to

the extent contemplated by that article (whether for a Director of the Issuer or for a Director of any of its Subsidiary Undertakings);

8.71.7 the transaction is an underwriting by the Related Party of all or part of an issue of Securities by the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) and the consideration to be paid by the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) in respect of such underwriting is no more than the usual commercial underwriting consideration and is the same as that to be paid to the other underwriters (if any);

8.71.8 the terms and circumstances of the investment or provision of finance by the Issuer, or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings are, in the opinion of an independent adviser acceptable to the Listing Authority, no less favourable than those applicable to the investment or provision of finance by the Related Party;

Provisions where an Audit Committee exists

8.72 These provisions shall apply where the Listing Authority deems that the Issuer has created and maintains an independent Audit Committee which provides sufficient guarantees/safeguards which protect the rights of the shareholders in transactions with a Related Party.

8.73 When an Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) proposes to enter into a transaction with a Related Party it shall before entering into such transaction refer the proposed transaction to the Audit Committee for scrutiny and approval.

8.74 The Audit Committee shall give due consideration to:

8.74.1 the materiality of the transaction in the context of the Issuer's business;

8.74.2 whether the transaction is in the ordinary course of the Issuer's business or the business of its subsidiary undertaking, as applicable; and

8.74.3 whether the transaction gives rise to preferential treatment to the Related Party

8.75 Should the Audit Committee, after considering the proposed Related Party Transactions as laid down in Listing Rule 8.74, deem that the proposed transaction will have a material effect on the Issuer's financial position and profit or loss; the Issuer shall cause a Company Announcement to be published.

8.76 A Company Announcement as required by the preceding rule shall contain:

8.76.1 the nature and details of the transaction;

8.76.2 the name of the Related Party concerned; and

8.76.3 details of the nature and extent of the interest of the Related Party in the transaction.

Reporting requirement

8.77 The Issuer shall disclose all Related Party transactions *ex post facto* in the Annual Financial Statements.

Related Party Circular

8.78 A Circular relating to a transaction with a Related Party must comply with the general requirements relating to Circulars set out in Chapter 11 (Shareholder Circulars) and must also include:

- 8.78.1 in the case of a transaction where the Related Party is a Director, or an associate of a Director, of the Issuer (or its Parent Undertaking or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings or related Subsidiary Undertakings) the information specified by the following Listing Rules in respect of that Director:
- 8.78.1.1 a statement showing the interest of each Director of the Issuer or a Connected Person of such Director in the Share Capital of the Issuer or any member of the Group distinguishing between beneficial and non-beneficial interests, or an appropriate negative statement;
 - 8.78.1.2 all relevant particulars regarding the nature and extent of any interests of Directors of the Issuer in transactions which are or were unusual in their nature or conditions or significant to the business of the Group, and which were effected by the Group during the current or immediately preceding Financial Year or during an earlier Financial Year and remain in any respect outstanding or unperformed or an appropriate negative statement;
 - 8.78.1.3 the total of any outstanding loans granted by any member of the Group to the Directors of the Issuer and also any guarantees provided by any member of the Group for their benefit.
- 8.78.2 full particulars of the transaction, including the name of the Related Party concerned and of the nature and extent of the interest of such party in the transaction;
- 8.78.3 in the case of an acquisition or disposal of an asset, which also falls within Listing Rule 8.95 and for which appropriate financial information is not available, an independent valuation;
- 8.78.4 a statement by the Directors (other than any Director who is a Related Party, or who is a Director of a Related Party, in respect of the transaction) that the transaction is fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Issuer are concerned and that the Directors have been so advised by an independent adviser acceptable to the Listing Authority;
- 8.78.5 where applicable, a statement that the Related Party will abstain from voting at the meeting;
- 8.78.6 if the transaction also falls within Listing Rule 8.95, the information required to be included in that Circular (see Listing Rule 8.107);
- 8.78.7 details of any other transactions entered into by the Issuer (or any of its Subsidiary Undertakings) with the same Related Party which have not been approved by the shareholders of the Issuer.

Miscellaneous

- 8.79 When further Securities are allotted of the same Class as Securities already authorised as Admissible to Listing, application for authorisation for Admissibility to Listing for such further Securities must be made not more than one (1) year after allotment or when they become freely transferable.
- 8.80 An Issuer must inform the Listing Authority in writing without delay if it becomes aware that the proportion of any Class of Equity Shares authorised as Admissible to Listing in the hands of the public has fallen below twenty-five percent (25%) of the

total issued Share capital of that Class or, where applicable, such lower percentage as the Listing Authority may have agreed.

8.81 An Issuer with a Substantial Shareholder must be capable at all times of carrying on its business independently of such Substantial Shareholder and all transactions and relationships between the Issuer and any Substantial Shareholder must be at arm's length and on a normal, commercial basis.

8.82 An Issuer must inform the Listing Authority without delay if it has been informed by a **Regulated Market** that listing of any of its Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing will be cancelled or suspended.

Deleted: cognised Investment Exchange

8.83 Issuers without Equity Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing need not comply with Listing Rule 8.92 to 8.107 (acquisitions and realisations).

8.84 Issuers which have only Debt Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing must comply with Chapters 8 and 9 but need not comply with the following Listing Rules of those Chapters:

Listing Rule

8.7.4	Board Decisions
8.7.8	Notification of major holdings
8.7.9	Total number of voting rights
8.7.10	Proportion of the Issuer's holding in own equity
8.18-8.19	Information on Directors and Senior Officers
8.20	Equality of Treatment
8.40	Directors' Service Contracts
8.65-8.78	Related Parties Transactions
9.35	Preliminary Statement of Annual Results
9.44e.3	Annual Accounts - Waiver of Emoluments
9.44e.4	Annual Accounts - Waiver of Dividends
9.44e.12	Annual Accounts Related Party Transactions

Deleted: 0.9

Deleted: 0.10

Deleted: 0.18

8.85 Issuers which have only fixed income Shares which are Admissible to Listing must comply with Chapters 8 and 9 but need not comply with the following Listing Rules of those Chapters:

Listing Rule

8.18-8.21	Information on Directors and Senior Officers
8.40	Directors' Service Contracts
8.65-8.78	Transactions with Related Parties
9.44e.3	Annual Accounts - Waiver of Emoluments
9.44e.4	Annual Accounts - Waiver of Dividends

Deleted: 0.9

Deleted: 0.10

In the case of Certificates Representing Shares, the Issuer of the Shares must fulfil the continuing obligations set out in this Chapter.

8.86 In addition, any change of the Issuer of the Certificates must be submitted to the Listing Authority. The replacement Issuer appointed must satisfy the applicable conditions for Admissibility set out in Chapter 3 of these Listing Rules.

8.87 Where Malta is the home Member State, the Issuer or any person having requested, without the Issuer's consent the admission of its securities to trading on a regulated market, shall supply the Listing Authority with an original and an electronic copy of:

8.87.1 all periodicals, special report and Circulars released or issued by the Issuer for the information of holders of any of the Issuer's Securities;

- 8.87.2 the Company Announcements issued in terms of Listing Rules 8.7.9, 8.7.10 and 8.7.13;
- 8.87.3 the published audited Annual Financial Report(see Listing Rules [9.36 to 9.44i](#)) of the Issuer and all documents required by law to be annexed thereto, as soon these have been made available to the public;
- 8.87.4 the published Half-yearly Financial Report (see Listing Rule [9.44j](#)) of the Issuer;
- 8.87.5 the interim Directors statement (see Listing Rule 9.51)

Deleted: 9.36 to 9.40

Deleted: 2

Memorandum and Articles of Association

- 8.88 The Articles of Association of all Issuers seeking authorisation for Admissibility to listing must conform with the provisions set out in Appendix 8.3 and obtain the prior authorisation by the Listing Authority. Only in very exceptional circumstances will the Listing Authority grant exemption from compliance with any of the provisions.
- 8.89 An Issuer shall not amend its Memorandum and Articles of Association unless prior written authorisation has been sought and obtained from the Listing Authority.
- 8.90 The Issuer shall communicate the draft amendments to its Memorandum and Articles of Association to the Regulated Market to which its securities have been admitted to trading.
- 8.91 If authorisation for the amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of Association is granted by the Listing Authority, the Issuer must send a Circular to its shareholders which shall:
 - 8.91.1 include an explanation of the effect of the proposed amendments;
 - 8.91.2 include either the full terms of the proposed amendments, or a statement that the full terms will be available for inspection:
 - 8.91.2.1 from the date of dispatch of the Circular until the close of the relevant general meeting at the registered or head office of the Issuer or such other place in Malta as the Listing Authority may determine; and
 - 8.91.2.2 at the place of the general meeting for at least fifteen (15) minutes prior to and during the meeting; and
 - 8.91.2.3 comply with the relevant requirements of Listing Rule 11.1 (contents of all Circulars).

Acquisitions and Realisations

- 8.92 In order to classify acquisitions and realisations the following criteria will be used:
 - 8.92.1 the value of the assets acquired or disposed of, compared with the assets of the acquiring or disposing Company;
 - 8.92.2 net profits, after deducting all charges except taxation and excluding extraordinary items, attributable to the assets acquired or disposed of compared with the net profits of the acquiring or disposing Company;
 - 8.92.3 the aggregate value of the consideration given or received, compared with the assets market capitalisation of the acquiring or disposing Company;

- 8.92.4 Equity Share Capital issued by the Issuer as consideration for the acquisition, compared with the Equity Share Capital already in issue of the Issuer.
- 8.93 Where Share capital of an unlisted Company is being acquired by an Issuer on a basis which would not result in the former becoming a Subsidiary, or where assets not representing a business are being acquired, the Listing Authority should be consulted concerning the requirement to report on profits and losses.
- 8.94 If any of the tests in Listing Rule 8.92 amount to five percent (5%) or more, a Company Announcement is required without delay after the terms of the transaction are agreed.
- 8.95 If any of the tests in Listing Rule 8.92 amount to thirty-five percent (35%) or more, a Circular to shareholders is required in addition to a Company Announcement.
- 8.96 If any of the tests in Listing Rule 8.92 amount to one hundred percent (100%) or more (reverse takeover), advance consultation with the Listing Authority is required. In these cases it will normally be necessary to publish a Circular to be sent to shareholders in addition to a Company Announcement and be subject to prior approval of the Issuer's shareholders in general meeting.
- 8.97 Solely for the purpose of determining the classification of a transaction, involving any acquisition or disposal of Equity Share Capital, the value of such capital is to be assessed by reference to the book value of the net assets excluding goodwill and other intangibles and after deducting loan capital and amounts set aside for future taxation, represented by such capital. In any acquisition or disposal of assets other than Equity Share Capital, the value of such assets is to be assessed by reference to the consideration.
- 8.98 Where the consideration is in the form of Equity Share Capital, the Listing Authority may determine the value of the consideration by reference either to the market value of such Equity Share Capital or the book value of the net assets represented by such Equity Share Capital as defined above.
- 8.99 "The assets of the acquiring or disposing company" means in relation to an acquisition of assets other than an interest in an Undertaking the consideration or, if greater, the book value of the net assets as defined above and in relation to a disposal of assets other than an interest in an Undertaking means the book value of such assets. In all cases the figures used for Companies will be taken from the latest published Consolidated Accounts adjusted to take account of subsequent transactions in the manner described in Listing Rule 8.102 below.
- 8.100 The requirements outlined above cover transactions where the consideration is satisfied by cash, Shares or other Securities or some other asset, or a combination of these. The Listing Authority may be prepared to vary the required information in marginal transactions.
- 8.101 In deciding whether a Circular should be sent to shareholders, the Listing Authority may aggregate acquisitions or realisations that have taken place since either the publication of the last Accounts, or the issue of the last Circular, whichever is the later during the twelve (12) months prior to the date of the latest transaction. Such aggregated transactions may then be treated as if they were one transaction if they were all completed within a short period of time, and the total of transactions not falling within Listing Rule 8.96 is in excess of one hundred percent (100%) as defined above. For these purposes, the value of transactions in respect of which adequate information has already been issued to shareholders will be included in the net tangible assets or profits of the acquiring or disposing Company for

- comparison with the transaction or transactions under consideration. In case of doubt as to aggregation, the Listing Authority should be consulted at an early stage.
- 8.102 Without prejudice to the generality of Listing Rule 8.101 transactions will normally only be aggregated in accordance with that provision if they:
- 8.102.1 are entered into by the Issuer with the same party or with parties connected with another;
 - 8.102.2 involve the acquisition or disposal of Securities or an interest in one particular Company; or
 - 8.102.3 together lead to substantial involvement in a business activity which did not previously form a part of the Company's principal activities.
- 8.103 If, under Listing Rule 8.101 aggregation results in a class test in excess of one hundred percent (100%), which would require Shareholder approval, then that approval is required only for the latest transaction.
- 8.104 Notwithstanding Listing Rule 8.101 where acquisitions are entered into since either the publication of the last Accounts or the issue of the last Circular, whichever is the later which cumulatively exceed one hundred percent (100%) in any of the percentage ratios, the provisions outlined in Listing Rule 8.96 (class test in excess of one hundred percent (100%)) may apply.
- 8.105 If, at any time subsequent to any Company Announcements made pursuant to Listing Rule 8.94 to 8.96 the Issuer has become aware that there has been a significant change affecting any matter contained in the Announcement such changes shall be identified by the Issuer by means of another Company Announcement.
- 8.106 In Listing Rules 8.105, "significant" means significant for the purpose of making an informed assessment of the assets and liabilities, financial position, profits and losses and prospects of the Issuer and the rights attaching to any Securities forming part of the consideration. It will include a change in the terms of the transaction such that the percentage ratios are affected and the transaction reclassified into a higher category.
- 8.107 The Circular referred to in Listing Rules 8.95 and 8.96 must comply with the general requirements relating to Circulars set out in Chapter 11 (Shareholder Circulars) of these Listing Rules and must be submitted to the Listing Authority for authorisation prior to its publication. It must also comply with the following requirements and include the following information:
- 8.107.1 the information given in the Company Announcement ;
 - 8.107.2 the information required by Appendix 8.2;
 - 8.107.3 in the case of an acquisition of an interest in an Undertaking which will result in consolidation of the net assets of that Undertaking or a disposal of an interest in an Undertaking which will result in the net assets no longer being consolidated, the information required by Listing Rules 9.11 to 9.13;
 - 8.107.4 in the case of a transaction not falling within 8.107.3 above, the financial information requested by the Listing Authority (see Listing Rule 9.8) together with confirmation that the Directors consider that the value to the Issuer justifies the price paid or received by it;
 - 8.107.5 a declaration by its Directors in the following form (with appropriate modifications):

“All the Directors of the Company, whose names appear on page [], accept responsibility for the information contained in this document. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.”;

- 8.107.6 a statement of the effect of the acquisition or disposal on the earnings or assets and liabilities of the Group;
- 8.107.7 where a statement or report attributed to a person as an Expert is included in a Circular which does not comprise Prospectus, a statement that it is included, in the form and context in which it is included, with the consent of that person.

Transactions Involving Substantial Shareholdings

- 8.108 This Listing Rule shall regulate the activities of an Issuer whenever it is advised or otherwise becomes aware of an impending share negotiation or transaction involving a Substantial Shareholding.

Substantial Shareholding shall for the purposes of this Rule mean the entitlement to exercise or control the exercise of ten percent (10%) or more of the votes able to be cast at general meetings or the entitlement to appoint a majority of Directors on the board of Directors of an Issuer.

- 8.108.1 All parties to an offer for an acquisition or disposal of a Substantial Shareholding in an Issuer as well as the Issuer must use every endeavour to prevent the creation of a false market in the securities of the Issuer. All parties involved in an offer for an acquisition or disposal of a Substantial Shareholding in an Issuer and the Issuer must take care that statements are not made which may mislead shareholders or the market.
- 8.108.2 Without prejudice to Listing Rule 8.7, an Issuer must promptly make a Company Announcement:
 - 8.108.2.1 when the board of Directors of the Issuer is advised or otherwise becomes aware that a purchaser is being sought for a Substantial Shareholding in the Issuer;
 - 8.108.2.2 when the Issuer is the subject of rumour and speculation;
 - 8.108.2.3 when the board of Directors of the Issuer is advised or otherwise becomes aware of a firm intention to acquire or dispose of a Substantial Shareholding in the Issuer;
 - 8.108.2.4 when the board of Directors of the Issuer is advised or otherwise becomes aware that an offer has been made to acquire or dispose of a Substantial Shareholding in the Issuer.
- 8.108.3 Without prejudice to any applicable privacy or secrecy obligations in terms of law, an Issuer may furnish in confidence to a bona fide offeror and the corresponding bona fide transferor such information including unpublished price-sensitive information as may be necessary to enable the bona fide offeror, the bona fide transferor and their advisers to make, confirm, withdraw or modify the offer, provided that such disclosure of information may only be furnished subject to the following conditions:

- 8.108.3.1 the express consent of the Company in general meeting by an ordinary resolution of the Company unless the memorandum or articles of the Company require an extraordinary resolution, to make such disclosure of information to bona fide offerors. Such consent may, but need not, be limited to a specific prospective offeror(s);
 - 8.108.3.2 the signing of a confidentiality agreement signed by the prospective transferor and the prospective offeror(s) to prevent the disclosure and use of the information furnished, other than for the purpose of the acquisition of the Substantial Shareholding in the Issuer;
 - 8.108.3.3 an undertaking from the prospective offeror(s) whereby they bind themselves not to deal in the Issuer's shares or any derivative instrument relating thereto, whether directly or indirectly, for a period of one year following completion of the transaction or termination thereof or discontinuance or withdrawal, other than to complete the transaction that prompted the disclosure of information hereunder;
 - 8.108.3.4 an undertaking from the prospective transferor that it acknowledges that the information received from the Issuer cannot be used or communicated other than for the purposes of a transaction in the shares that are the subject of the offer, whether wholly or in part, whether with the prospective offeror(s) or otherwise, and that it cannot deal in other shares of the Issuer for a period of one year following completion of the transaction or termination thereof or discontinuance or withdrawal.
- 8.108.4 When the transaction that prompted the furnishing of information in confidence is completed the Issuer shall make a Company Announcement disclosing the outcome of negotiations relating to the acquisition or disposal of a Substantial Shareholding in the Issuer, including the price at which the Substantial Shareholding was acquired or disposed of.
- 8.108.5 When the transaction that prompted the furnishing of information in confidence is not completed and the Issuer is advised or otherwise becomes aware of such non completion, the Issuer shall make a Company Announcement disclosing the outcome of negotiations.
- 8.108.6 In the event that the transaction that prompted the furnishing of information in confidence is completed, a purchaser which has had access to information in confidence in terms of this Listing Rule shall be prohibited from acquiring further securities in the Issuer or from disposing of securities in the Issuer, whether directly or indirectly for a period of one year from the date of acquisition.
- 8.108.7 In the event that the transaction that prompted the furnishing of information in confidence is not completed, a bona fide offeror which has had access to information in confidence in terms of this Listing Rule shall be prohibited from acquiring securities in the Issuer, whether directly or indirectly, for a period of one year following termination thereof or discontinuance or withdrawal, other than to complete the transaction that prompted the disclosure of information hereunder.

8.108.8 Regardless of the outcome of the transaction, the purchaser or the bona fide offeror, as the case may be, shall, immediately following completion of the transaction or termination thereof or discontinuance or withdrawal, notify the Issuer to that effect and return all the information furnished by the Issuer and shall take prompt action to cancel, delete or destroy such information furnished by the Issuer that cannot be returned.

Notification of the acquisition or disposal of major holdings to which voting rights are attached.

- 8.109 Where the Home Member State is Malta and as soon as a shareholder acquires 5% or more of the Issuer's shares to which voting rights are attached, the Issuer shall immediately inform the shareholder of his obligation to notify the Issuer and the Listing Authority of any changes in major holdings in terms of Listing Rules 8.110 to 8.128.
- 8.110.1 Any Shareholder who acquires or disposes shares to which voting rights are attached and where the Home Member State is Malta, shall notify the Issuer and the Listing Authority of the proportion of voting rights of the Issuer held by such Shareholder as a result of the acquisition or disposal where that proportion reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, 30%, 50%, 75% and 90%.
- 8.110.2 The voting rights shall be calculated on the basis of all the shares to which voting rights are attached even if the exercise thereof is suspended. Deleted: 111
- 8.110.3 This information shall also be given in respect of all the shares which are in the same Class and to which voting rights are attached. Deleted: 2
- 8.110.4 The Issuer and the Listing Authority shall also be notified in terms of Listing Rule 8.110.1 when the proportion reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds specified in the same Listing Rule, as a result of events changing the breakdown of voting rights. Deleted: 3
- 8.110.5 The threshold referred to in Listing Rule 8.110 shall be calculated on the basis of the information made available to the public by the Issuer at the end of each calendar month, of the total number of voting rights and capital, during which an increase or decrease of such total number has occurred. Deleted: 4
- 8.110.6 Where the Issuer is incorporated or registered in a non-EU or EEA State, the notification shall be made for equivalent events. Deleted: 5
Deleted: third country
- 8.111 The notification requirement defined in Listing Rule 8.110.1 shall also apply to a natural or legal person who;
- 8.111.1 is entitled to acquire, to dispose of, or to exercise voting rights in any of the following cases or a combination of them: Deleted: 6
- 8.111.1.1 voting rights held by a third party with whom that person or entity has concluded an agreement, which obliges them to adopt, by concerted exercise of the voting rights they hold, a lasting common policy towards the management of the Issuer in question; Deleted: 6
- 8.111.1.2 voting rights held by a third party under an agreement concluded with that person or entity providing for the temporary transfer for consideration of the voting rights in question; Deleted: 6
- 8.111.1.3 voting rights attaching to shares which are lodged as collateral with that person or entity, provided the Deleted: 6

- person or entity controls the voting rights and declares its intention of exercising them;
- 8.111.1.4 voting rights attaching to shares in which that person or entity has the right of usufruct;
- 8.111.1.5 voting rights which are held, or may be exercised within the meaning of Listing Rule 8.111.1.1 to 8.111.1.4 above, by an undertaking controlled by that person or entity;
- 8.111.1.6 voting rights attaching to shares deposited with that person or entity which the person or entity can exercise at its discretion in the absence of specific instructions from the shareholders;
- 8.111.1.7 voting rights held by a third party in its own name on behalf of that person or entity;
- 8.111.1.8 voting rights which that person or entity may exercise as a proxy where the person or entity can exercise the voting rights at its discretion in the absence of specific instructions from the shareholders.
- 8.112 The obligation to notify the Issuer in terms of Listing Rule 8.110.1 shall be an individual obligation incumbent upon each shareholder, or each natural person or legal entity as referred to in Listing Rule 8.111, or both in case the proportion of voting rights held by each party reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds laid down in Listing Rule 8.110.1. In the circumstances, however, referred to in Listing Rule 8.111.1.1 the said notification obligation shall be a collective obligation shared by all the parties to the agreement.²
- 8.113 In the circumstances referred to in Listing Rule 8.111.1.8, if a shareholder gives the proxy in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification when the proxy is given provided it is made clear in the notification what the resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights at its discretion.³
- 8.114 If in the circumstances referred to in Listing Rule 8.111.1.8 the proxy holder receives one or several proxies in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification on or after the deadline for receiving proxies provided that it is made clear in the notification what the resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights at its discretion.⁴
- 8.115 When the duty to make notification lies with more than one natural person or legal entity, notification may be made by means of a single common notification but this does not release any of those persons from their responsibilities in relation to the notification.⁵
- 8.116 A natural or legal person shall make a notification in terms of Listing Rule 8.110.1 in respect of any qualifying financial instruments held by such person, directly or indirectly, which result in an entitlement to acquire, on such holder's own initiative alone, under a formal agreement, shares to which voting rights are attached, of an

² Art 8(1)

³ Art 8(2)

⁴ Art 8(2), 2nd para

⁵ Art 8(3)

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 6

Deleted: 16

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: 8

Inserted: 8 shall be an individual obligation incumbent upon each shareholder, or each natural person or legal entity as referred to in Listing Rule 8.11

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: 6

Inserted: 6, or both in case the proportion of voting rights held by each party reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds laid down in Listing Rule 8.110

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: 6

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm

Deleted: a

Formatted ... [28]

Formatted ... [29]

Formatted ... [30]

	Issuer whose shares are admitted to listing on a Regulated Market and provided that such person enjoys, on maturity, either the unconditional right to acquire the underlying shares or the discretion as to his right to acquire such shares or not.	Deleted: 6 Formatted: ... [31]
8.116a	For the purposes of Listing Rule 8.116: “qualifying financial instruments” means transferable securities and options, futures, swaps, forward rate agreements and any other derivative contracts, as referred to in paragraphs 1 to 10 of the Second Schedule to the Investment Services Act (Cap. 370 of the Laws of Malta); “formal agreement” means an agreement which is binding under applicable law. ⁸	Deleted: 7 Formatted: ... [32] Formatted: ... [33] Deleted: b Inserted: b . For the pu... [34] Deleted: a Formatted: ... [35] Formatted: ... [36]
8.116b	A person referred to in Listing Rule 8.116 shall aggregate and notify to the Issuer of the underlying share and the Listing Authority all qualifying financial instruments relating to the same underlying Issuer.	Deleted: Section C of A... [37] Formatted: ... [38] Formatted: ... [39]
8.116c	If a qualifying financial instrument relates to more than one underlying share, a separate notification shall be made to each Issuer of the underlying shares.	Deleted: c Inserted: c . A person r... [40]
8.117	The notification required under Listing Rule 8.110.1 and 8.111 shall include the following information:	Deleted: a...9 ... [41] Formatted: ... [42] Deleted: d Inserted: d . If a qualify... [43] Deleted: 10 Formatted: ... [44] Deleted: . 8.116.2 . hol... [45] Deleted: 6... [46] Deleted: shareholding Deleted: shareholder, ev... [47] Inserted: ¶ [48] Formatted: ... [49] Deleted: a.1 Inserted: a.1 . for instru... [50] Formatted: ... [51] Formatted: ... [52] Deleted: , Inserted: , an indicat... [53] Formatted: ... [54] Deleted: a.2 Inserted: a.2 . the date... [55] Formatted: ... [56] Deleted: a.3 Inserted: a.3 . name of... [57] Formatted: ... [58] Deleted: b Inserted: b . For the pu... [59] Deleted: a...shareholdin... [60] Formatted: ... [61] Formatted: ... [62] Deleted: to Formatted: ... [63]
8.117.1	the resulting position in terms of voting rights;	
8.117.2	the chain of Controlled Undertakings through which voting rights and/or financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable;	
8.117.3	the date on which the threshold was reached or crossed;	
8.117.4	the identity of the person entitled to exercise voting rights, even if that person is not entitled to exercise voting rights under the conditions laid down in Listing Rule 8.111.	
8.117.5	for instruments with an exercise period:	
8.117.5.a	an indication of the date or time period where shares will or can be acquired, if applicable;	
8.117.5.b	the date of maturity or expiration of the instrument;	
8.117.5.c	name of the underlying Issuer. ¹¹	
8.117a	For the purposes of the notification referred to in Listing Rule 8.117, the resulting position in terms of voting rights shall be calculated by reference to the total number of voting rights and capital as last disclosed by the Issuer in terms of Listing Rule 8.7.9. ¹²	
8.118	The notification that is required to be made to the Issuer in terms of Listing Rule 8.110.1 shall be effected as soon as possible, but not later than four trading days	
	⁸ Art 11, 3 rd para	
	¹¹ Art 11(3)	
	¹² Art 11(3), last para	

following the date on which the shareholder, or the natural or legal person representing the shareholder: ¹³

8.118.1 learns of the acquisition or disposal or of the possibility of exercising voting rights, or on which, having regard to the circumstances, should have learned of it, regardless of the date on which the acquisition, disposal or possibility of exercising voting rights takes effect; or

8.118.2 is informed about the events changing the breakdown of voting rights.

8.118a For the purposes of Listing Rule 8.118.1, the shareholder, or the natural or legal person representing the shareholder shall be deemed to have knowledge of the acquisition, disposal or possibility to exercise voting rights no later than two trading days following the transaction in question. ¹⁴

8.119 Notwithstanding Listing Rule 8.118, a Shareholder shall notify the Issuer by not later than 1 May 2007, of the proportion of voting rights and capital it holds in accordance with Listing Rule 8.110 and 8.116 with Issuers at that date, unless it has already made a notification containing equivalent information.

8.120 An undertaking, being a shareholder of an Issuer, shall be exempted from notifying the Issuer of any changes in its holding as required under Listing Rule 8.110.1 if the notification is made by its Parent Undertaking or, where the Parent Undertaking is itself a Controlled Undertaking, by its own Parent Undertaking. ¹⁶

8.121 Upon receipt of the notification in terms of Listing Rule 8.110.1 but no later than three trading days thereafter, the Issuer shall make the notification available to the public and shall make a Company Announcement including all the information contained in the notification.

8.122 Notwithstanding Listing Rule 8.121, an Issuer shall disclose the information received in accordance with Listing Rule 8.119 by not later than 1 June 2007.

8.123 Listing Rule 8.110.1 shall not apply to:

8.123.1 shares acquired for the sole purpose of clearing and settling within the usual short settlement cycle not exceeding three trading days following the execution of the transaction;³⁰

¹³ Art 11(4)

¹⁴ Art.9

¹⁶ Art.12(3) of TD

³⁰ Art 5

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Deleted: ¹⁵and where a transaction is conditional upon the approval by public authorities of the transaction or on a futu... [64]

Inserted: ¹⁵and where... [65]

Formatted ... [66]

Deleted: 8.119a . The ... [67]

Inserted: 8.119a . The ... [68]

Formatted ... [69]

Comment: To check hig... [70]

Deleted: 8.119c . In the ... [71]

Formatted ... [72]

Deleted: such managem... [73]

Deleted: 8.122 . Where ... [74]

Inserted: ¶ ... [75]

Formatted ... [76]

Inserted: e

Deleted: and

Formatted ... [77]

Deleted: Notification by... [78]

Inserted: icle

Deleted:

Deleted: electronic mea... [79]

Deleted: 4(1), point 9, a... [80]

Deleted: E

Deleted: ¶ ... [81]

Inserted: that:¶ ... [82]

Inserted: it does not int... [83]

Deleted: the investment... [84]

Formatted ... [85]

Formatted ... [86]

Deleted: ¶ ... [87]

Formatted ... [88]

Formatted ... [89]

Formatted ... [90]

Deleted: 5

Deleted: 6...5 ... [91]

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 7

Deleted: the... usual sh... [92]

Formatted: English (U.S.)

<p>8.123.2 <u>shares held by</u> Custodians in their Custodian capacity provided such Custodians can only exercise the voting rights attached to such shares under instructions given in writing or by electronic means.</p>	<p>Deleted: 7 Deleted: , or to...holdin(... [93] Inserted: 7.2 . shares held by Deleted: 7</p>
<p>8.123.3 acquisitions or disposal of a major holding reaching or crossing the 5% threshold by a Market Maker acting in its capacity of a market maker <u>and complying with the conditions and operating requirements set out in Listing Rule 8.124.</u></p>	<p>Deleted: 2... (... [94] Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt Deleted: 7a. Inserted: 7a.</p>
<p>8.123.4 shares provided to or by the members of the European System of Central Banks in carrying out their functions as monetary authorities, including shares provided to or by members of the European System of Central Banks under a pledge or repurchase or similar agreement for liquidity granted for monetary policy purposes or within a payment system. Provided that the above shall apply with regards to transactions lasting for a short period and the voting rights attaching to such shares are not exercised.</p>	<p>Deleted: provided that the Market Maker is authorised by it's Home Member State and it neither intervenes in the management of the Issuer concerned nor exerts any influence on the Issuer to (... [95] Deleted: 7 Deleted: 3</p>
<p>8.124. A Market Maker shall be exempted in terms of Listing Rule 8.123.3 provided that such Market Maker::</p>	<p>Formatted (... [96] Formatted (... [97]</p>
<p>8.124.1 is authorised by its home member state under Directive 2004/39/EC:</p>	<p>Deleted: 27a Inserted: 27a . A Mark(... [98]</p>
<p>8.124.2 does not intervene in the management of the Issuer concerned;</p>	<p>Deleted: 7 Inserted: 7.3 provided (... [99]</p>
<p>8.124.3 does not exert any influence on the Issuer to buy such shares or back the share price; and</p>	<p>Formatted (... [100] Deleted: 7a Inserted: 7a.1 . is auth(... [101]</p>
<p>8.124.4 notifies the Listing Authority within the time limit laid down in Listing Rule 8.118 that it conducts or intends to conduct market making activities on a particular Issuer.³¹</p>	<p>Deleted: MiFID Deleted: 7a Inserted: 7a.2 . does it(... [102]</p>
<p>8.125. Where the Market Maker ceases to conduct market making activities on the Issuer concerned, it shall notify the Listing Authority accordingly.³²</p>	<p>Formatted (... [103] Deleted: 27a Inserted: 27a.3 . does (... [104]</p>
<p>8.126. The Listing Authority may require the Market Maker undertaking market making activities with respect to Securities of an Issuer whose Home Member State is Malta, as referred to in Listing Rule 8.123.3, to identify the shares or financial instruments held for market making activity purposes, in which case the Market Maker may make such identification by any verifiable means.³³</p>	<p>Deleted: 7a Inserted: 7a.4 . notifie(... [105] Formatted (... [106] Deleted: 7b Inserted: 7b . Where t(... [107]</p>
<p>8.127. If the Market Maker is unable to identify the shares or financial instruments concerned, the Listing Authority may require him to hold them in a separate account for identification purposes.³⁴</p>	<p>Formatted (... [108] Deleted: 7c Inserted: 7c . The Lis(... [109]</p>
<p>8.128. Voting rights held in the trading book, as defined in Article 11 of Directive 2006/49/EC, of a credit institution or investment firm shall not be counted for the purposes of Listing Rule 8.110.1 provided that:</p>	<p>Formatted (... [110] Deleted: 7 Formatted (... [111] Deleted: d Formatted (... [112] Formatted (... [113]</p>
<p>8.128.1 the voting rights held in the trading book do not exceed 5%; and</p> <p>8.128.2 the credit institution or investment firm ensures that the voting rights attaching to shares held in the trading book are not exercised nor otherwise used to intervene in the management of the Issuer.</p>	<p>Deleted: Where Malta (... [114] Formatted: Superscript</p>

³¹ Art 6(1)
³² Art 6(1), 2nd para
³³ Art 6(2)
³⁴ Art 6(2)

Notification by management companies and investment firms

8.128a For the purposes of Listing Rules 8.128b.1 and 8.128d.3 “direct instruction” and “indirect instruction” shall have the following meaning:

“direct instruction” means any instruction given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, specifying how the voting rights are to be exercised by the management company or investment firm in particular cases;

“indirect instruction” means any general or particular instruction, regardless of the form, given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, that limits the discretion of the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of the voting rights in order to serve specific business interests of the Parent Undertaking or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking.³⁵

8.128b The Parent Undertaking of a management Company shall not be required to aggregate its holdings with the holdings managed by the management Company under the conditions laid down in Directive 85/611/EEC, provided that:

8.128b.1 it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that management company; and

8.128b.2 the management company is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.³⁶

8.128c Where the parent undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, has invested in holdings managed by such management Company and the management Company has no discretion to exercise the voting rights attached to such holdings and may only exercise such voting rights under direct or indirect instructions from the parent or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, the holdings of the Parent Undertaking shall be aggregated with its holdings through the management company.

8.128d The Parent Undertaking of an investment firm authorised under Directive 2004/39/EC shall not be required to aggregate its holdings with the holdings which such investment firm manages on a client-by-client basis within the meaning of Article 4(1), point 9, of Directive 2004/39/EC provided that:

8.128d.1 the investment firm is authorised to provide such portfolio management under point 4 of Section A of Annex I to Directive 2004/39/EC;

8.128d.2 it may only exercise the voting rights attached to such shares under instructions given in writing or by electronic means or it ensures that individual portfolio management services are conducted independently of any other services under conditions equivalent to those provided for under Directive 85/611/EEC by putting into place appropriate mechanisms;

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.9 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2 cm, Hanging: 1.81 cm

³⁵ Art 10(5)

³⁶ Art 10(1)

- 8.128d.3 it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that investment firm; and
- 8.128d.4 the investment firm is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.³⁷
- 8.128e Where the parent undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, has invested in holdings managed by such investment firm and the investment firm has no discretion to exercise the voting rights attached to such holdings and may only exercise such voting rights under direct or indirect instructions from the parent or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, the holdings of the Parent Undertaking shall be aggregated with its holdings through the investment firm.
- 8.128f A Parent Undertaking which does not aggregate its holdings in terms of Listing Rules 8.128b or 8.128d shall, without delay, notify to the Listing Authority the following information:
- 8.128f.1 a list of the names of those management companies and investment firms, indicating the competent authorities that supervise them or that no competent authority supervises them, but with no reference to the issuers concerned;
- 8.128f.2 in the case of a management company, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.128b;
- 8.128f.3 in the case of an investment firm, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.128d.3 and 8.128d.4.³⁸
- 8.128g The Parent Undertaking shall update the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.128f.1 on an ongoing basis.³⁹
- 8.128h Where a Parent Undertaking intends to avail itself of the exemptions contained in Listing Rules 8.128b or 8.128d only in relation to the financial instruments referred to in Listing Rule 8.116, it shall notify to the Listing Authority only the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.128f.1.⁴⁰
- 8.128i The Listing Authority may request a Parent Undertaking of a management company or of an investment firm to demonstrate that:
- 8.128i.1 the organisational structures of the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm are such that the voting rights are exercised independently of the Parent Undertaking;
- 8.128i.2 the persons who decide how the voting rights are to be exercised act independently;

³⁷ Art 10(1)

³⁸ Art 10(2)

³⁹ Art 10(2), last para

⁴⁰ Art 10(3)

8.128i.3 if the Parent Undertaking is a client of its management company or investment firm or has holding in the assets managed by the management company or investment firm, there is a clear written mandate for an arms-length customer relationship between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm.⁴¹

8.128j The Parent Undertaking shall be deemed to satisfy Listing Rule 8.128i.1 if as a minimum the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm have established written policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to prevent the distribution of information between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of voting rights.⁴²

Calendar of trading days

8.128k For the purposes of Listing Rules 8.7.10, 8.118 and 8.121, the calendar of trading days of the Home Member State of the Issuer shall apply.⁴³

8.128l The Listing Authority shall publish on its website the calendar of trading days of the different regulated markets situated or operating in Malta.⁴⁴

Issuers registered in a non-EU or EEA State

8.129 Where an Issuer is admitted to trading in Malta but its registered office is not in a Member or EEA State, the Listing Authority may exempt that Issuer from the requirements of the following Listing Rules:

Listing Rules

9.36-9.44i	<u>Annual Financial Report</u>
9.44j-9.50	<u>Half-yearly Report</u>
9.51-9.53	<u>Interim Directors statements</u>
8.7.8	<u>Notification of major holdings</u>
8.7.9	<u>Total number of voting rights</u>
8.7.10	<u>Proportion of the Issuer's holding in own equity</u>
8.24-8.35	<u>Information requirements</u>

Provided that the Listing Authority considers that the Issuer is subject to equivalent legal requirements.

8.130 The Issuer, as referred to in Listing Rule 8.129, shall file and disclose the equivalent information subject to the provisions of this Chapter.

Equivalent Information

Requirements equivalent to the Directors' Report (Listing Rule 9.36.1)

8.130a An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as

⁴¹ Art 10(4)

⁴² Art 10(4), last para

⁴³ Art 7(1)

⁴⁴ Art 7(2)

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: Italic

Deleted: a

Deleted: 5

Inserted: a . For the purposes of Listing Rules 8.7.10, 8.118 and 8.12

Inserted: 5, the calendar of trading days of the Home Member State of the Issuer shall apply.⁴³

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

Deleted: b

Inserted: b . The Listing Authority shall publish on its website the calendar of trading days of the different regulated markets situated or operating in Malta.⁴⁴

. Issuers registered in a (... [115]

Formatted (... [116]

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Deleted: 0

Deleted: Audited Ann (... [117]

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 49

Deleted: r

Deleted: Chapters 8

Deleted: and 9

Deleted: .

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted (... [118]

Formatted (... [119]

Formatted (... [120]

Formatted (... [121]

Formatted (... [122]

Formatted (... [123]

those prescribed by Listing Rule 9.40.4 where, under the law of that country, a report is required to be prepared which includes at least the following information:

8.130a.1 a fair review of the development and performance of the Issuer's business and of its position, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces, such that the review presents a balanced and comprehensive analysis of the development and performance of the Issuer's business and of its position, consistent with the size and complexity of the business;

8.130a.2 an indication of any important events that have occurred since the end of the financial year;

8.130a.3 indications of the Issuer's likely future development.⁴⁵

8.130b For the purposes of Listing Rule 8.130a.1, the analysis required by that rule shall, to the extent necessary for an understanding of the Issuer's development, performance or position, include both financial and, where appropriate, non-financial key performance indicators relevant to the particular business.⁴⁶

Requirements equivalent to the Interim Directors' Report (Listing Rule 9.44k.2)

8.130c An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 9.44k.2 where, under the law of that country, an interim management report is required to be prepared together with a condensed set of financial statements and such report includes at least the following information:

8.130c.1 a review of the period covered;

8.130c.2 indications of the Issuer's likely future development for the remaining six months of the financial year;

8.130c.3 for issuers of shares and if already not disclosed on an ongoing basis, major related parties transactions.⁴⁷

Requirements equivalent to the Statements of Responsibility (Listing Rules 9.36.2 and 9.44k.3)

8.130d An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 9.36.2 and 9.44k.3 where, under the law of that country, a person or persons within the Issuer are responsible for the annual and half-yearly financial information, and in particular for the following:

8.130d.1 the compliance of the financial statements with the applicable reporting framework or set of accounting standards;

8.130d.2 the fairness of the management review included in the management report.⁴⁸

⁴⁵ Art 13

⁴⁶ Art 13, last para

⁴⁷ Art 14

⁴⁸ Art 15

Deleted: the annual management report

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: is required to

Inserted: is required to include

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted ... [124]

Formatted ... [125]

Formatted ... [126]

Formatted ... [127]

Formatted ... [128]

Deleted: a

Inserted: a condensed ... [129]

Formatted ... [130]

Deleted: is required in ... [131]

Formatted ... [132]

Deleted: the

Formatted ... [133]

Deleted: interim management

Formatted ... [134]

Deleted: is required to

Formatted ... [135]

Formatted ... [136]

Formatted ... [137]

Formatted ... [138]

Formatted ... [139]

Formatted ... [140]

Formatted ... [141]

Formatted ... [142]

Formatted ... [143]

Formatted ... [144]

Deleted: 40.5

Inserted: 40.5 and 9.44

Formatted ... [145]

Formatted ... [146]

Formatted ... [147]

Formatted ... [148]

Formatted ... [149]

Formatted ... [150]

Formatted ... [151]

Requirements equivalent to the Interim Directors' Statements (Listing Rules 9.51 to 9.53)

8.130e An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 9.51 to 9.53 where, under the law of that country, an Issuer is required to publish quarterly financial reports.⁴⁹

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Requirements equivalent to the annual financial statements required to be prepared in terms of Listing Rule 9.39

8.130f An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 9.39 where, under the law of that country, the provision of individual accounts by the parent company is not required but the Issuer whose registered office is in that non-EU or EEA State is required to include the following information in the consolidated accounts:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm, Tabs: 1.27 cm, Left + 1.75 cm, Left + Not at 1.9 cm

8.130f.1 for Issuers of shares, dividends computation and ability to pay dividends;

8.130f.2 for all Issuers, where applicable, minimum capital and equity requirements and liquidity issues.

Provided that such Issuer shall be able to provide the Listing Authority with additional audited disclosures giving information on the individual accounts of the Issuer as standalone, relevant to the elements of information referred to in Listing Rules 8.130f.1 and 8.130f.2, which disclosures may be prepared under the accounting standards of the non-EU or EEA State in which the Issuer has its registered office.⁵⁰

Deleted: ,

Inserted: , to include the following information in the consolidated accounts:¶
. 8.130f.1 . for Issuers of shares, dividends computation and ability to pay dividends;¶
. 8.130f.2 . for all Issuers, where applicable, minimum capital and equity requirements and liquidity issues.¶
. . . Provided that such Issuer shall be able to provide the Listing Authority with additional audited disclosures giving information on the individual accounts of the Issuer as standalone, relevant to the elements of information referred to in Listing Rules 8.130f.1 and 8.130f.2, which disclosures may be prepared under the accounting standards of the non-EU or EEA State in which the Issuer has its registered office.⁵⁰

Requirements equivalent to the annual financial statements required to be prepared in terms of Listing Rule 9.40

8.130g An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 9.40 where, under the law of that country, such Issuer is not required to prepare consolidated accounts but is required to prepare its individual financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards as adopted by the EU or with national accounting standards of the non-EU or EEA State in which the Issuer has its registered office if these are equivalent to the international accounting standards as adopted by the EU.⁵¹

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm

8.130h If the individual financial statements are not considered by the Listing Authority to be equivalent in terms of Listing Rule 8.130g, such financial statements shall be presented in the form of restated financial statements.⁵²

8.130i Individual financial statements referred to in Listing Rules 8.130g and 8.130h shall be audited independently.⁵³

⁴⁹ Art 16

⁵⁰ Art 17

⁵¹ Art 18, 1st para

⁵² Art 18, 2nd para

⁵³ Art 18, 3rd para

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

8.131 An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be exempted from preparing its Annual Financial Report and half-yearly report in accordance with Listing Rules 9.36 to 9.44i and 9.44i to 9.44t respectively, prior to the Financial Year starting on or after 1 January 2007, as long as such Issuer prepares its Annual Financial Report and half-yearly financial report in accordance with international accounting standards as adopted by the EU.

Requirements equivalent to Listing Rule 8.121

8.132 An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 8.121, where, under the law of that country, the time period within which such Issuer shall be notified of major holdings and within which it shall disclose those major holdings to the public is in total equal to or shorter than seven trading days.⁵⁴

8.132a In the case of an Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State, the time-frames for the notification of major holdings to the Issuer and for the subsequent disclosure to the public by the Issuer may be different from those set out in Listing Rules 8.118 and 8.121.⁵⁵

Requirements equivalent to the test of independence for Parent Undertakings of management companies and investment firms

8.133 Undertakings whose registered office is not in a Member or EEA State which would have required an authorization in accordance with Article 5(1) of Directive 85/611/EEC or, with regard to portfolio management under point 4 of section A of Annex I to Directive 2004/39/EC if it had its registered office or, only in the case of an investment firm, its head office within the Community, shall also be exempted from aggregating holdings with the holdings of its Parent Undertaking under the requirements laid down in Listing Rules 8.128b and 8.128d provided that they comply with equivalent conditions of independence as management companies or investment firms.

8.133a The undertakings referred to in Listing Rule 8.133 shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.128b to 8.128e where, under the law of that country, the management company or investment firm is required to meet the following conditions:

8.133a.1 the management company or investment firm is required to be free in all situations to exercise the voting rights attached to the assets it manages independently of its Parent Undertaking;

8.133a.2 the management company or investment firm is required to disregard the interests of the Parent Undertaking or of any other Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking whenever conflicts of interest arise.⁵⁶

⁵⁴ Art 19, 1st para

⁵⁵ Art 19, 2nd para

⁵⁶ Art 23(1)

Deleted: The

Deleted: h

Deleted: financial

Deleted: r

Deleted: 2

Deleted: internationally accepted standards referred to in Article 9 of Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: 5

Inserted: 5 where, und ... [152]

Formatted ... [153]

Formatted ... [154]

Formatted ... [155]

Deleted: 5

Inserted: 5.⁵⁵

Formatted ... [156]

Deleted: The Listing A ... [157]

Deleted: Directive 2004/39/EC

Deleted: MiFID

Inserted: MiFID

Deleted: 1

Deleted: to 8.124

Formatted ... [158]

Deleted: d

Inserted: d . The unde ... [159]

Formatted ... [160]

Deleted: 8.121 to 8.124

Formatted ... [161]

Formatted ... [162]

Formatted ... [163]

Deleted: d

Inserted: d.1 . the mar ... [164]

Formatted ... [165]

Formatted ... [166]

Formatted ... [167]

Formatted ... [168]

Formatted ... [169]

Formatted ... [170]

Deleted: d

Inserted: d.2 . the mar ... [171]

Formatted ... [172]

Formatted ... [173]

Formatted ... [174]

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

8.133b The Parent Undertaking of the management companies or investment firms referred to in Listing Rule 8.133a shall comply with the notification requirements laid down in Listing Rules 8.128f, 1 and 8.128h, and shall also make a statement that, in the case of each management company or investment firm concerned, the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rule 8.133a above.⁵⁷

8.133c The Listing Authority may request the Parent Undertaking of the management companies or investment firms referred to in Listing Rule 8.133a to demonstrate that the requirements laid down in Listing Rule 8.128i are satisfied.⁵⁸

Requirements equivalent to Listing Rules 8.7.10 and 12.12

8.133d An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.7.10 and 12.12 where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to comply with the following conditions:

8.133d.1 in the case of an Issuer allowed to hold up to a maximum of 5 % of its own shares to which voting rights are attached, it is required to make a notification whenever that threshold is reached or crossed;

8.133d.2 in the case of an Issuer allowed to hold up to a maximum of between 5 % and 10 % of its own shares to which voting rights are attached, it is required to make a notification whenever the 5% threshold or that maximum threshold is reached or crossed;

8.133d.3 in the case of an Issuer allowed to hold more than 10 % of its own shares to which voting rights are attached, it is required to make a notification whenever the 5 % threshold or the 10 % threshold is reached or crossed.⁵⁹

Requirements equivalent to Listing Rule 8.7.9

8.133e An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 8.7.9 where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to disclose to the public the total number of voting rights and capital within thirty (30) calendar days after an increase or decrease of such total number has occurred.⁶⁰

Requirements equivalent to Listing Rules 8.25.1 and 8.32.1

8.133f An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.25.1 and 8.32.1, as far as the content of the

⁵⁷ Art 23(2)

⁵⁸ Art 23(3)

⁵⁹ Art.20

⁶⁰ Art 21

Deleted: e	
Inserted: e . The Pare	[175]
Formatted	[176]
Formatted	[177]
Formatted	[178]
Deleted: d	
Inserted: d shall comp	[179]
Formatted	[180]
Deleted: 4a	
Inserted: 4a.1 and 8.12	
Formatted	[181]
Deleted: 4c	
Inserted: 4c and shall	[182]
Formatted	[183]
Deleted: d	
Inserted: d above. ⁵⁷	[184]
Formatted	[185]
Formatted	[186]
Deleted: f	
Inserted: f . The Listir	[187]
Formatted	[188]
Deleted: d	
Inserted: d to demons	[189]
Formatted	[190]
Deleted: 24d	
Inserted: 24d are satisfied. ⁵⁸	
Formatted	[191]
Formatted	[192]
Deleted: a	
Inserted: a . An Issuer	[193]
Formatted	[194]
Formatted	[195]
Formatted	[196]
Deleted: a	
Inserted: a.1 . in the c	[197]
Formatted	[198]
Deleted: a	
Formatted	[199]
Formatted	[200]
Deleted: a	
Inserted: a.3 . in the c	[201]
Formatted	[202]
Deleted: b	
Inserted: b . An Issuer	[203]
Formatted	[204]
Deleted: c	
Inserted: c . An Issuer	[205]
Formatted	[206]

information about meetings is concerned, where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to provide at least information about the place, time and agenda of meetings.⁶¹

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt

Uses of Languages

- 8.134 When Malta is the Home Member State and securities are admitted to trading only in Malta, Regulated Information shall be disclosed in the English or Maltese language.
- 8.135 When Malta is the Home Member State and securities are admitted to trading in Malta and in one or more host Member or EEA State, the Regulated Information shall be disclosed:
- 8.135.1 in the English or in the Maltese language; and
- 8.135.2 depending on the choice of the Issuer, either in a language accepted by the regulatory authorities of those host Member or EEA States or in a language customary in the sphere of international finance.
- 8.136 When securities are admitted to trading in Malta as the host Member State, the Regulated Information shall be disclosed either in English or Maltese or in a language customary in the sphere of international finance.
- 8.137 When Malta is the Home Member State and securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in one or more host Member or EEA States excluding Malta, the Regulated Information shall be disclosed either in English or Maltese or in a language customary in the sphere of international finance, depending on the choice of the Issuer.
- 8.138 Where securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent, the obligation under Listing Rules 8.134 to 8.137 shall be incumbent not upon the Issuer, but upon the person who, without the Issuer's consent, has requested such admission.
- 8.139 Shareholders and the natural or legal persons referred to in Listing Rules 8.110, 8.111 and 8.116 shall notify information to an Issuer in a language customary in the sphere of international finance. In this case, the Issuer is not required to provide the Listing Authority with a translation of such notification.
- 8.140 Where securities whose denomination per unit amounts to at least €50,000, or, in the case of Debt Securities denominated in a currency other than Lm equivalent to at least €50,000, at the date of the issue, are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in one or more Member or EEA States, Regulated Information shall be disclosed to the public either in English or Maltese language or in a language customary in the sphere of international finance, at the choice of the Issuer or of the person who, without the Issuer's consent, has requested such admission.
- 8.141 If an action concerning the content of Regulated Information is brought before a court or tribunal in Malta, responsibility for the payment of costs incurred in the translation of that information for the purposes of the proceedings shall be decided in accordance with the Maltese law.

Deleted:

Deleted: Lm 21,465

Deleted: Lm 21,465

Access to Regulated Information

- 8.141a An Issuer or a person who has applied, without the Issuer's consent, for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market shall file and disclose Regulated Information in the manner set out in Listing Rules 8.141b to 8.141m.⁶²

Comment: To be defined

⁶¹ Art 22

⁶² Art 12(1)

Filing of Regulated Information with the Listing Authority and the Officially Appointed Mechanism

8.141b An Issuer or a person who has applied, without the Issuer's consent, for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market shall file Regulated Information with the Listing Authority and the Officially Appointed Mechanism at the same time such information is disclosed to the public in terms of Listing Rule 8.141c.

Disclosure of Regulated Information to the public

8.141c When disseminating Regulated Information an Issuer or other person who has applied, without the Issuer's consent, for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market shall ensure that the minimum standards laid down in Listing Rules 8.141d to 8.141j are observed.

8.141d Regulated Information shall be disseminated in a manner ensuring that it is capable of being disseminated to as wide a public as possible, and as close to simultaneously as possible in the Home Member State and in other Member or EEA States.⁶³

8.141e Regulated Information shall be communicated to the media in unedited full text, provided that in the case of the Annual Financial Report, the Half-yearly Report and the Interim Directors' Statement, this requirement shall be deemed to be fulfilled if the information communicated to the media indicates on which website, in addition to the Officially Appointed Mechanism for the central storage of Regulated Information, the relevant documents are available.⁶⁴

8.141f Regulated Information shall be communicated to the media in a manner which ensures the security of the communication, minimises the risk of data corruption and unauthorized access, and provides certainty as to the source of the Regulated Information. Security of receipt shall be ensured by remedying as soon as possible any failure or disruption in the communication of Regulated Information.⁶⁵

8.141g The Issuer or the person who has applied, without the Issuer's consent, for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market, shall not be responsible for systemic errors or shortcomings in the media to which the Regulated Information has been communicated.⁶⁶

8.141h Regulated Information shall be communicated to the media in a way which:

8.141h.1 makes it clear that the information is Regulated Information; and

8.141h.2 identifies clearly

8.141h.2.1 the Issuer concerned;

8.141h.2.2 the subject matter of the Regulated Information; and

⁶³ Art 12(2)

⁶⁴ Art 12(3)

⁶⁵ Art 12(4), 1st and 2nd para

⁶⁶ Art 12(4) 3rd para

8.141h.2.3 the time and date of the communication of the Regulated Information by the Issuer or the person who has applied for an admission to listing on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent.⁶⁷

8.141i In relation to any disclosure of Regulated Information, the Listing Authority may request from the Issuer or the person who has applied for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent, the following information:

8.141i.1 the name of the person who communicated the information to the media;

8.141i.2 the security validation details;

8.141i.3 the time and date on which the information was communicated to the media;

8.141i.4 the medium in which the information was communicated;

8.141i.5 if applicable, the details of any embargo placed by the Issuer on the Regulated Information.⁶⁸

8.141j The Issuer or person who has applied for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent, shall not charge investors any specific cost for providing Regulated Information.⁶⁹

8.141k Where securities are admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in Malta and Malta is the only Host Member State, an Issuer or a person who has applied for admissibility to listing on a Regulated Market without the Issuer's consent, shall disclose Regulated Information in the same manner as prescribed in Listing Rules 8.141d to 8.141j.⁷⁰

Disclosure of information in a non EU or EEA State

8.141l The Listing Authority shall ensure that information, including Regulated Information, disclosed in a non EU or EEA State which may be of importance to the public in the Member or EEA States is disclosed in terms of Listing Rules 8.141d to 8.141j.⁷¹

8.141m The language used to disclose information in terms of Listing Rule 8.141l shall be determined in accordance with Listing Rules 8.134 to 8.141.⁷²

- Deleted: I
- Inserted: Information
- Deleted: that is
- Deleted: ,
- Deleted: for
- Deleted: shall
- Deleted: be

Amalgamations

General

⁶⁷ Art 12(5) 1st para

⁶⁸ Art 12(5) 2nd para

⁶⁹ Art 23(1) of TD

⁷⁰ Art 21(3) of TD

⁷¹ Art 23(3) of TD

⁷² Art 23(3) of TD

Deleted: ⁷¹

- 8.142 Companies other than Oversea Companies are bound to adhere to the provisions in Title II Part VIII of the CA entitled, Amalgamation of Companies.
- 8.143 Where the Directors of an Issuer are having discussions with a Company, person or Group which may lead to an offer being made it is important that everyone concerned maintains secrecy in order to avoid disturbances in the price level of the Issuer's Shares.
- 8.144 Where an Issuer receives a notice of intention to make an amalgamation offer, the Directors shall advise each Regulated Market Investment Exchange on which the Issuer's Securities are Admitted to Trading or Listing and the Listing Authority of such notice.
- 8.145 An offeree Company shall send to all holders of other Classes of Shares and convertible notes in the Issuer, whether or not such Securities are covered by the amalgamation offer, a copy of all documents which it is required by law to send to the holders of the Shares subject to the amalgamation offer.
- 8.146 Where an offeror extends the time for acceptance of an amalgamation offer, he shall simultaneously announce the percentage of Shares subject to the amalgamation for which he has received acceptances.
- 8.147 If an Issuer has amalgamated or, in the opinion of the Listing Authority, formed an association with an unlisted Company, person or group, and as a result the unlisted Company, person or Group has thereby acquired control of the Issuer, the Issuer shall immediately lodge with the Listing Authority all information and documents which are then currently required from any Issuer seeking authorisation for Admissibility.
- 8.148 Where an amalgamation offer is made for the acquisition of not less than ninety percent (90%) of an Issuer's Securities authorised as Admissible to Listing, upon the Announcement by the offeror that acceptances have been received from the holders of the said ninety percent (90%) of the Issuer's Securities, Admissibility of all such Securities shall be cancelled.
- 8.149 Where an unlisted Company, person or Group submits an amalgamation offer for the acquisition of an Issuer's Securities, upon the Announcement by the offeror that he has obtained sufficient acceptances and that he holds directly or indirectly more than fifty percent (50%) of the offeree Company's Securities, the offeror shall disclose immediately to the Listing Authority, his plans and intentions in regard to the offeree Company and any other information that the Listing Authority considers necessary.
- 8.150 Where an offeror is a Listed Company but not an Oversea Company the requirements of these Listing Rules relating to amalgamations should be complied with.

Deleted: Recognised

Offer Documents

- 8.151 In addition to complying with Title II, Part VIII of the CA entitled Amalgamation of Companies, all offer documents in connection with amalgamations must contain the following particulars:
- 8.151.1 the date of the document, the name and address of the offeror and if appropriate of the person or Company making the offer on behalf of the offeror;
- 8.151.2 precise particulars of the Securities for which the offer is made, whether they will be transferred cum or ex any dividend or interest payment, the total consideration payable for the purchase, the period within which and the method by which any cash consideration will be

paid, how any Securities issued will rank for dividends or interest, capital and redemption and when and how the document of title will be issued and how any such offer may be accepted and within what period;

- 8.151.3 a statement of all conditions attached to acceptances and in particular whether the offer is conditional upon acceptances being received in respect of a minimum number of Securities and, if that is so, that minimum number and the last date on which the offer can be made unconditional. No offer may be conditional upon the payment of compensation for loss of office; if any such payment is proposed, full particulars must be given. A partial offer must be on a pro rata basis and the reason for the failure to make a full offer given;
- 8.151.4 a statement as to whether the offeror or its Directors or any person acting in concert has any beneficial interest - whether direct or indirect - in any of the Securities for which the offer is made, giving full particulars. If there is no such interest, a statement should be made to this effect. Details, including dates and costs, must be given of any transactions in the Securities for which the offer is made, entered into by any of these persons during the period commencing twelve (12) months prior to the Announcement of the offer and ending with the latest practicable date prior to the posting of the offer documents, or an appropriate negative statement made;
- 8.151.5 a statement as to whether or not any Securities acquired in pursuance of the offer will be transferred to any other person, together with the names of the parties to any such agreement and particulars of all Securities in the offeree Company held by such person, or a statement that no such Securities are held;
- 8.151.6 a statement as to whether or not any agreement or arrangement exists between the offeror and any of the Directors of the offeree Company having any connection with or dependence upon the offer, and full particulars of any such agreement or arrangement;
- 8.151.7 the market quotation, if any, for any Securities to be offered in exchange and in addition for the Securities to be acquired, which quotations in the case of quoted Securities should be taken from a Recognised List;
- 8.151.8 the intentions of the offeror regarding its policy :
 - 8.151.8.1 for the continuance of the business of the offeree Company explaining any major changes intended to be introduced in the business, including the redeployment of fixed assets of the offeree and setting out the long term commercial justification for the proposed offer; and
 - 8.151.8.2 for the continued employment of the existing employees of the offeree Company, setting out the extent of any steps to be taken towards terminating such employment;
- 8.151.9 particulars of all documents required to be lodged for valid acceptance. If the offer lapses all such documents must be returned within fourteen days of the closing date of the offer;
- 8.151.10 if the offer is for cash and is made on behalf of the offeror, a statement in the offer document as to what steps have been taken to ensure that the offer will be implemented if all the offerees accept;

8.151.11 if the offer is for the exchange of Securities the offer document must state the nature and particulars of the offeror Company's business, its net profit before and after tax and rate percent of dividends on the Securities offered and the total amount absorbed thereby for the past three (3) years, whether any financial advantage is expected to accrue to an acceptor, whether the issue of the new Securities requires the passing of a resolution, the first dividend in which they will participate and particulars of all material changes in the offeror Company since the date of its last published Accounts together with a statement of the assets and liabilities stated in those Accounts. If the new Securities are not to be identical in all respects with an existing Security Admissible to Listing, all points of difference, full particulars of the voting rights attaching thereto and whether application for authorisation for Admissibility to Listing has been or will be made to the Listing Authority must be stated;

8.151.12 if the offer contains no recommendation by the offeree Company's Directors the offer document must state particulars of any known material change in the offeree Company's financial position since the publication of the last balance sheet;

Deleted: 2

8.151.13 if the total Emoluments receivable by the Directors of the offeror will be varied in consequence of the acquisition, full particulars of the variation; if there is no variation a statement to that effect;

Deleted: 2

8.151.14 if the offer document or any Circular sent out in connection therewith, whether by or on behalf of the offeror Company or the offeree Company, includes expressly or by implication a recommendation by a financial adviser or other Expert for or against acceptance of the offer, the Listing Authority may require the document, unless issued by the Expert in question, to include a statement that the Expert has given and not withdrawn his written consent to the issue of the document and the inclusion therein of his recommendation in the form and context in which it is included;

Deleted: 2

8.151.15 if the offer is recommended by the offeree's Directors the offer documents must state the offeree Directors' recommendations regarding acceptance, the number, description and amount of Securities held by or on behalf of the Directors of the offeree Company in it and in the offeror Company and their intentions in regard to such holdings as regards acceptance and otherwise as may be relevant. Full particulars of any material change in the financial position or prospects of the offeree Company since the date of the last Accounts must be stated;

Deleted: 2

8.151.16 every offer document shall contain as a heading the words:

"Should you require any advice in relation to this offer you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager or other licensed professional adviser";

8.151.17 the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Accounts for the last three (3) complete Financial Years of the offeror, any professional valuation of assets referred to in the offer document and all material contracts must be made available for inspection at the Listing Authority during the duration of the offer.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.9 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, No bullets or numbering

Deleted: 8.151.17 .

|



Formatted: Font: 11 pt

	Page 80: [1] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:37 AM
	Level 1		
	Page 80: [2] Deleted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 9:57 AM
8.1	The provisions of this Chapter shall not apply to Units issued by collective investment undertakings other than the closed-end type, or to Units acquired or disposed of in such collective investment undertakings.		
	Page 80: [2] Deleted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:27 AM
2			
	Page 80: [3] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:28 PM
2	Once an Issuer's Securities have been duly authorised as admissible to listing on a Regulated Market in Malta, the Issuer shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the continuing obligations of these Listing Rules at all times.		
	Page 80: [4] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:26 AM
	Highlight		
	Page 80: [5] Comment	mifsl001	28/03/2008 2:16 PM
	Should be amended to include where Malta is the HMS. or else delete and insert LR 8.5a		
	Page 80: [6] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:28 PM
3	The Listing Authority may, at any time, require an Issuer to publish such information in such form and within such time limits as it considers appropriate to protect investors or to ensure the smooth operation of the market.		
8.			
	Page 80: [7] Formatted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:26 PM
	None, Right: -0.13 cm		
	Page 80: [8] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:28 PM
4	If an Issuer fails to comply with the requirement under Listing Rules 8.		
	Page 80: [9] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:24 PM
4,	the Listing Authority may itself publish the information, if the same is available to it, after giving the Issuer an opportunity to make representations as to why it should not be published.		
8.			
	Page 80: [10] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:20 PM
5	Where Malta is the home Member State, the Listing Authority may subject Issuers to obligations more stringent than those provided for hereafter or to additional obligations, provided that they apply generally to all Issuers or to all Issuers of a given Class.		
	Page 80: [11] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 11:34 AM
	Highlight		
	Page 80: [12] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 9:57 AM
	None		
	Page 80: [13] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 9:57 AM
	Font: Not Italic		

Page 80: [14] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
1	Subject to any exemptions set out herein, this Chapter applies to an Issuer:	
	8.5a	
Page 80: [15] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
1.1	whose Securities are admitted to	
Page 80: [16] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
	trading on a Regulated Market; and	
	8.5a	
Page 80: [17] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
1.2	whose Home Member State is Malta.	
	8.5b	
Page 80: [18] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
2	For the purposes of this Chapter	
Page 80: [19] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
2.1	in the case of an Issuer of Debt Securities the denomination per unit of which is less than one thousand Euro or an Issuer of shares:	
	8.5b	
Page 80: [20] Deleted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 10:01 AM
	Malta is the Member State in which an	
Page 80: [21] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:31 PM
	Malta is the Member State in which an	
Page 80: [22] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
	where the Issuer has is	
Page 80: [23] Deleted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:39 PM
	is	
Page 80: [23] Deleted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:39 PM
Page 80: [24] Deleted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:41 PM
	, the Member State in which it	
Page 80: [25] Inserted	meilp001	26/03/2008 4:41 PM
	has its registered office	
Page 80: [26] Inserted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 9:30 AM
	has its registered office;	
	8.5b	
Page 83: [27] Deleted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 11:36 AM

The provisions of Listing Rules 8.14 and 8.15 shall apply to accounting periods commencing on or after 20 May 2006.

- 8.14 An Issuer shall include in the Company's Annual Report the following:
- 8.14.1 the structure of their Capital, including securities which are not admitted to trading on a Regulated Market in a Member State, where appropriate with an indication of the different Classes of shares and, for each Class of shares, the rights and obligations attaching to it and the percentage of total share capital that it represents;
 - 8.14.2 any restrictions on the transfer of securities, such as limitations on the holding of securities or the need to obtain the approval of the Company or other holders of securities;
 - 8.14.3 any direct and indirect shareholdings (including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structures and cross-shareholdings) in excess of 5% of the share Capital;
 - 8.14.4 the holders of any securities with special control rights and a description of those rights;
 - 8.14.5 the system of control of any employee share scheme where the control rights are not exercised directly by the employees;
 - 8.14.6 any restriction on voting rights, such as limitations of the voting rights of holders of a given percentage or number of votes, deadlines for exercising voting rights, or systems whereby, with the company's cooperation, the financial rights attaching to securities are separated from the holding of securities;
 - 8.14.7 any agreements between shareholders which are known to the Company and may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or voting rights;
 - 8.14.8 the rules governing the appointment and replacement of Board members and the amendment of the Articles of Association;
 - 8.14.9 the powers the Board members, and in particular the power to issue or buy back shares;
 - 8.14.10 any significant agreement to which the Company is a party and which take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following a take overbid, and the effects thereof, except where their nature is such that their disclosure would be seriously prejudicial to the Company (this exception shall not apply where the Company is specifically obliged to disclose such information on the basis of other legal requirements);
 - 8.14.11 any agreements between the Company and its Board Members or employees providing for compensation if they resign or are made redundant without valid reason or if their employment ceases because of a takeover bid.
- 8.15 Board Members shall present an explanatory report to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders on the matters referred to above.

Page 102: [30] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:55 AM
Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto		
Page 103: [31] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 12 pt		
Page 103: [32] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 12 pt		
Page 103: [32] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:55 AM
Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto		
Page 103: [33] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 2 cm		
Page 103: [34] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:02 AM
b For the purposes of Listing Rule 8.116a:		
“qualifying financial instruments” means transferable securities and options, futures, swaps, forward rate agreements and any other derivative contracts, as referred to in Section C of Annex 1 of MiFID		
Page 103: [35] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Normal, Justified, Indent: Left: 0.63 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space Before: 0 pt, After: 6 pt, Border: Left: (No border), Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left		
Page 103: [36] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:55 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 103: [37] Deleted	meilp001	11/04/2008 10:32 AM
Section C of Annex 1 of MiFID		
Page 103: [38] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:03 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 103: [39] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 2 cm		
Page 103: [40] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:17 AM
c A person referred to in Listing Rule 8.116a shall aggregate and notify to the Issuer of the underlying share and the Listing Authority all qualifying financial instruments relating to the same underlying Issuer. ¹		
8.116		
Page 103: [41] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 8:28 AM
a		
Page 103: [41] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 8:29 AM
2		
Page 103: [42] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:19 PM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 12 pt		
Page 103: [43] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:41 AM

1 Art 11(2), 11(5)

2 Art 11(2), 11(5)

- d If a qualifying financial instrument relates to more than one underlying share, a separate notification shall be made to each Issuer of the underlying shares. 3

Page 103: [44] Formatted **mifsl001** **28/03/2008 12:19 PM**
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 12 pt

Page 103: [45] Deleted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 11:04 AM**
8.116.2 holds directly or indirectly, financial instruments that result in an entitlement to acquire, on such holder's own initiative alone, under a formal agreement, shares already issued and to which voting rights are attached, of an Issuer whose shares are admitted to trading on a regulated market.

Page 103: [46] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 8:29 AM**
6

Page 103: [46] Deleted **meilp001** **11/04/2008 10:34 AM**

Page 103: [47] Deleted **meilp001** **10/04/2008 4:48 PM**
shareholder, even if that Shareholder is not entitled to exercise voting rights under the conditions

Page 103: [47] Deleted **meilp001** **14/04/2008 9:27 AM**
6

Page 103: [47] Deleted **meilp001** **10/04/2008 4:48 PM**
, and of the natural person or legal entity entitled to exercise voting rights on behalf of that shareholder.
8.117a The notification made by a natural or legal person in terms of Listing Rule 8.116a shall in addition to the information referred to in Listing Rule 8.117, include the following:

Page 103: [48] Inserted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 11:29 AM**

8.117a The notification made by a natural or legal person in terms of Listing Rule 8.116a shall in addition to the information referred to in Listing Rule 8.117, include the following:

8.117

Page 103: [49] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 11:32 AM**
Indent: Left: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 103: [50] Inserted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 11:31 AM**
a.1 for instruments with an exercise period

Page 103: [51] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 11:32 AM**
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 103: [52] Formatted **meilp001** **10/04/2008 4:49 PM**
Indent: Left: 3.81 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 103: [53] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
--------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

, an indication of the date or time period where shares will or can be acquired, if applicable;

8.117

Page 103: [54] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 103: [55] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
--------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

a.2 the date of maturity or expiration of the instrument;

8.117

Page 103: [56] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 103: [56] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 103: [57] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
--------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

a.3 name of the underlying Issuer.⁴

8.117

Page 103: [58] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:36 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 103: [59] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:36 AM
--------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

b For the purposes of the notification referred to in Listing Rule 8.117a, the resulting shareholding position in terms of voting rights shall be calculated by reference to the total number of voting rights and capital as last disclosed by the Issuer in terms of Listing Rule 8.7.9. 5

Page 103: [60] Deleted	meilp001	11/04/2008 10:35 AM
-------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

a

Page 103: [60] Deleted	meilp001	11/04/2008 10:35 AM
-------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

shareholding

Page 103: [61] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:32 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 103: [62] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:29 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm

Page 103: [63] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:04 PM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Superscript

Page 104: [64] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 8:32 AM
-------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

6 and where a transaction is conditional upon the approval by public authorities of the transaction or on a future uncertain event the occurrence of which is outside the

4 Art 11(3)

5 Art 11(3), last para

6 Art 9

control of the parties to the agreement, the parties are deemed to have knowledge of the acquisition, disposal or possibility of exercising voting rights only when the relevant approvals are obtained or when the event happens.

Page 104: [65] Inserted **mifsl001** **25/03/2008 4:35 PM**

7 and where a transaction is conditional upon the approval by public authorities of the transaction or on a future uncertain event the occurrence of which is outside the control of the parties to the agreement, the parties are deemed to have knowledge of the acquisition, disposal or possibility of exercising voting rights only when the relevant approvals are obtained or when the event happens.

Page 104: [66] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**

Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto

Page 104: [66] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**

Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 11 pt, Font color: Auto, Highlight

Page 104: [67] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 8:24 AM**

- 8.119a The notification obligation following transactions of a kind mentioned in Listing Rule 8.116 is an individual obligation incumbent upon each shareholder, or each natural or legal person representing the shareholder mentioned in Listing Rule 8.116 or both if the proportion of voting rights held by each party reaches, exceeds or falls below thresholds laid down in Listing Rule 8.110.8
- 8.119b In the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.1, the notification obligation shall be a collective obligation shared by all parties to the agreement.⁹

Page 104: [68] Inserted **mifsl001** **25/03/2008 4:48 PM**

- 8.119a The notification obligation following transactions of a kind mentioned in Listing Rule 8.116 is an individual obligation incumbent upon each shareholder, or each natural or legal person representing the shareholder mentioned in Listing Rule 8.116 or both if the proportion of voting rights held by each party reaches, exceeds or falls below thresholds laid down in Listing Rule 8.110.10
- 8.119b In the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.1, the notification obligation shall be a collective obligation shared by all parties to the agreement.¹¹
- 8.119c In the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.8 if a shareholder gives the proxy in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification when the proxy is given provided it is made clear in the notification what the resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights discretion.¹²
- 8.119d If in the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.8 the proxy holder receives one or several proxies in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification on or after the deadline for receiving proxies provided that it is made clear in the notification what the

7 Art 9

8 Art 8(1)

9 Art 8(1), last para

10 Art 8(1)

11 Art 8(1), last para

12 Art 8(2)

resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights at its discretion.¹³

- 8.119e When the duty to make notification lies with more than one natural person or legal entity, notification may be made by means of a single common notification but this does not release any of those persons from their responsibilities in relation to the notification.¹⁴

Notification by management companies and investment firms

- 8.120a For the purposes of Listing Rules 8.121.1 and 8.123.3 “direct instruction” and “indirect instruction” shall have the following meaning:

“direct instruction” means any instruction given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, specifying how the voting rights are to be exercised by the management company or investment firm in particular cases;

“indirect instruction” means any general or particular instruction, regardless of the form, given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, that limits the discretion of the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of the voting rights in order to serve specific business interests of the Parent Undertaking or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking.¹⁵

Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [69] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [70] Comment	mifsl001	28/03/2008 2:16 PM
To check highlighted part with directive		
Page 104: [71] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 8:24 AM

- 8.119c In the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.8 if a shareholder gives the proxy in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification when the proxy is given provided it is made clear in the notification what the resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights discretion.¹⁶

13 Art 8(2), 2nd para

14 Art 8(3)

15 Art 10(5)

16 Art 8(2)

8.119d If in the circumstances contemplated in Listing Rule 8.116.1.8 the proxy holder receives one or several proxies in relation to one shareholder meeting, notification may be made by means of a single notification on or after the deadline for receiving proxies provided that it is made clear in the notification what the resulting situation in terms of voting rights will be when the proxy may no longer exercise the voting rights at its discretion.¹⁷

8.119e When the duty to make notification lies with more than one natural person or legal entity, notification may be made by means of a single common notification but this does not release any of those persons from their responsibilities in relation to the notification.¹⁸

Page 104: [72] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 104: [72] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 104: [73] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 10:24 AM**
such management Company exercises its voting rights independently from the parent undertaking.

Page 104: [74] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 10:24 AM**
8.122 Where the parent undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, has invested in holdings managed by such management Company and the management Company has no discretion to exercise the voting rights attached to such holdings and may only exercise such voting rights under direct or indirect instructions from the parent or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, the holdings of the Parent Undertaking shall be aggregated with its holdings through the management company.

8.123 The Parent Undertaking of an investment firm authorised under Directive 2004/39/EC shall not be required to aggregate its holdings with the holdings which such investment firm manages on a client-by-client basis within the meaning of Article

Page 104: [75] Inserted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 9:13 AM**

8.124a A Parent Undertaking which is not required to aggregate its' holdings in terms of Listing Rules 8.121 or 8.123 shall, without delay, notify to the Listing Authority with the following information:

8.124a.1 a list of the names of those management companies and investment firms, indicating the competent authorities that supervise them or that no competent authority supervises them, but with no reference to the issuers concerned;

8.124a.2 in the case of a management company, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.121;

17 Art 8(2), 2nd para
18 Art 8(3)

- 8.124a.3 in the case of an investment firm, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.123.3 and 8.123.4.¹⁹
- 8.124b The Parent Undertaking shall update the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.124a.1 on an ongoing basis.²⁰
- 8.124c Where a Parent Undertaking intends to avail itself of the exemptions contained in Listing Rules 8.121 or 8.123 only in relation to the financial instruments referred to in Listing Rule 8.116.2, shall notify the Listing Authority only the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.124a.1.²¹
- 8.124d The Listing Authority may request a Parent Undertaking of a management company or of an investment firm to demonstrate that:
- 8.124d.1 the organisational structures of the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm are such that the voting rights are exercised independently of the Parent Undertaking;
- 8.124d.2 the persons who decide how the voting rights are to be exercised act independently;
- 8.124d.3 if the Parent Undertaking is a client of its management company or investment firm or has holding in the assets managed by the management company or investment firm, there is a clear written mandate for an arms-length customer relationship between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm.²²
- 8.124e The Parent Undertaking shall be deemed to satisfy Listing Rule 8.124d.1 if as a minimum the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm have established written policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to prevent the distribution of information between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of voting rights.²³

Page 104: [76] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:33 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 2 cm		
Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM

19 Art 10(2)
20 Art 10(2), last para
21 Art 10(3)
22 Art 10(4)
23 Art 10(4), last para

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [77] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Default Paragraph Font, Font: 11 pt

Page 104: [78] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 10:24 AM
-------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

Notification by management companies and investment firms

8.120a For the purposes of Listing Rules 8.121.1 and 8.123.3 “direct instruction” and “indirect instruction” shall have the following meaning:

“direct instruction” means any instruction given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, specifying how the voting rights are to be exercised by the management company or investment firm in particular cases;

“indirect instruction” means any general or particular instruction, regardless of the form, given by the Parent Undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking, that limits the discretion of the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of the voting rights in order to serve specific business interests of the Parent Undertaking or another Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking.²⁴

8.120 An undertaking shall be exempted from notifying the Issuer of any changes in its holding as required under Listing Rule 8.110 if the notification is made by the Parent Undertaking or, where the Parent Undertaking is itself a Controlled Undertaking, by its own parent undertaking.

8.121 The Parent Undertaking of a management Company shall not be required to aggregate its holdings with the holdings managed by the management Company under the conditions laid down in Directive 85/611/EEC, provided that:

8.121.1 it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that management company; and

the management company is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.²⁵

Page 104: [79] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 10:24 AM
-------------------------------	-----------------	----------------------------

24 Art 10(5)

25 Art 10(1)

electronic means or it ensures that individual portfolio management services are conducted independently of any other services under conditions equivalent to those provided for under Directive 85/611/EEC by putting into place appropriate mechanisms;

Page 104: [80] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 10:24 AM**
4(1), point 9, of Directive 2004/39/EC provided that:

8.123.1 the investment firm is authorised to provide such portfolio management under point 4 of Section A of Annex I to Directive 2004/39/EC;

8.123.2 it may only exercise the voting rights attached to such shares under instructions given in writing or by

Page 104: [81] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 10:24 AM**

8.123.3 it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that investment firm; and

8.123.4 the investment firm is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.²⁶

Page 104: [82] Inserted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 9:21 AM**
that:

8.121.1 it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that management company; and

the management company is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.²⁷

Page 104: [83] Inserted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 9:25 AM**

it does not interfere by giving direct or indirect instructions or it does not interfere in any other way in the exercise of the voting rights held by that investment firm; and

8.123.4 the investment firm is free to exercise, independently of the parent undertaking, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages.²⁸

Page 104: [84] Deleted **meilp001** **04/04/2008 10:24 AM**

the investment firm exercises its voting rights independently from the parent undertaking.

Page 104: [85] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**

Font: Italic

Page 104: [85] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**

Font: Italic

Page 104: [85] Formatted **mifsl001** **26/03/2008 10:35 AM**

Font: Italic

26 Art 10(1)

27 Art 10(1)

28 Art 10(1)

Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [85] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Italic		
Page 104: [86] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [86] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [86] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [87] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 10:24 AM

- 8.124 Where the parent undertaking, or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, has invested in holdings managed by such investment firm and the investment firm has no discretion to exercise the voting rights attached to such holdings and may only exercise such voting rights under direct or indirect instructions from the parent or another Controlled Undertaking of the parent undertaking, the holdings of the Parent Undertaking shall be aggregated with its holdings through the investment firm.
- 8.124a A Parent Undertaking which is not required to aggregate its' holdings in terms of Listing Rules 8.121 or 8.123 shall, without delay, notify to the Listing Authority with the following information:
- 8.124a.1 a list of the names of those management companies and investment firms, indicating the competent authorities that supervise them or that no competent authority supervises them, but with no reference to the issuers concerned;
 - 8.124a.2 in the case of a management company, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.121;
 - 8.124a.3 in the case of an investment firm, a statement that the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rules 8.123.3 and 8.123.4.29

- 8.124b The Parent Undertaking shall update the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.124a.1 on an ongoing basis.³⁰
- 8.124c Where a Parent Undertaking intends to avail itself of the exemptions contained in Listing Rules 8.121 or 8.123 only in relation to the financial instruments referred to in Listing Rule 8.116.2, shall notify the Listing Authority only the list referred to in Listing Rule 8.124a.1.³¹
- 8.124d The Listing Authority may request a Parent Undertaking of a management company or of an investment firm to demonstrate that:
- 8.124d.1 the organisational structures of the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm are such that the voting rights are exercised independently of the Parent Undertaking;
- 8.124d.2 the persons who decide how the voting rights are to be exercised act independently;
- 8.124d.3 if the Parent Undertaking is a client of its management company or investment firm or has holding in the assets managed by the management company or investment firm, there is a clear written mandate for an arms-length customer relationship between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm.³²
- 8.124e The Parent Undertaking shall be deemed to satisfy Listing Rule 8.124d.1 if as a minimum the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm have established written policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to prevent the distribution of information between the Parent Undertaking and the management company or investment firm in relation to the exercise of voting rights.³³

Page 104: [88] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [89] Formatted	meilp001	04/04/2008 8:31 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		

30 Art 10(2), last para
31 Art 10(3)
32 Art 10(4)
33 Art 10(4), last para

Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [90] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 104: [91] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 10:26 AM
6		
Page 104: [91] Deleted	meilp001	04/04/2008 10:26 AM
5		
Page 104: [92] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:23 PM
the		
Page 104: [92] Deleted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 10:12 AM
usual short		
Page 105: [93] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:31 PM
, or to		
Page 105: [93] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:31 PM
holding shares		
Page 105: [94] Deleted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 10:12 AM
2		
Page 105: [94] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:41 PM
,		
Page 105: [95] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:49 PM
provided that the Market Maker is authorised by it's Home Member State and it neither intervenes in the management of the Issuer concerned nor exerts any influence on the Issuer to buy such shares or back the share price.		
Page 105: [96] Formatted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 2:37 PM
Indent: Left: 3.75 cm		
Page 105: [97] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 10:23 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 2 cm		

Page 105: [110] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [110] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [110] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [111] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [111] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [112] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [112] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 105: [113] Formatted mifsl001 25/03/2008 3:00 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm

Page 105: [114] Deleted meilp001 11/04/2008 10:43 AM
Where Malta is the home Member State,

Page 105: [114] Deleted meilp001 11/04/2008 10:43 AM

v

Page 105: [114] Deleted meilp001 10/04/2008 4:58 PM
2(6) of Council Directive 93/6/EEC

Page 108: [115] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 2:11 PM

b The Listing Authority shall publish on its website the calendar of trading days of the different regulated markets situated or operating in Malta.³⁶

Issuers registered in a non-EU or EEA State

Page 108: [116] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 10:35 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 108: [117] Deleted meilp001 11/04/2008 10:50 AM
Audited Annual Accounts

Page 108: [118] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 108: [119] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 108: [120] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 108: [121] Formatted mifsl001 26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 108: [122] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 108: [123] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:50 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [124] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:56 AM
Indent: Left: 2 cm, Hanging: 1.75 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 3.75 cm, Left		
Page 109: [125] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:57 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [126] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:17 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left		
Page 109: [127] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [128] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [129] Inserted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 11:59 AM
a condensed set of financial statements is required in addition to the interim management report, and the		
Page 109: [130] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [131] Deleted	meilp001	11/04/2008 11:08 AM
is required in addition to the interim management report,		
Page 109: [132] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:17 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [133] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [134] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 10:17 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [135] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [136] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Hanging: 1.27 cm		
Page 109: [137] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [138] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Left: 1.9 cm		
Page 109: [139] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [140] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Left: 1.9 cm		
Page 109: [141] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [142] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:04 PM

Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm

Page 109: [143] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left		
Page 109: [144] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [145] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [146] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [147] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.27 cm		
Page 109: [148] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Left: 1.9 cm		
Page 109: [149] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 109: [150] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 12:45 PM
Indent: Left: 1.9 cm		
Page 109: [151] Formatted	mifsl001	26/03/2008 12:06 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 111: [152] Inserted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 4:28 PM
5 where, under the law of that country, the time period within which such Issuer shall be notified of major holdings and within which it shall disclose those major holdings to the public is in total equal to or shorter than seven trading days. ³⁷		
8.132a In the case of an Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State, the time-frames for the notification of major holdings to the Issuer and for the subsequent disclosure to the public by the Issuer may be different from those set out in Listing Rules 8.118 and 8.12		
Page 111: [153] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 4:35 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 111: [154] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 4:35 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 111: [155] Formatted	mifsl001	27/03/2008 4:35 PM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt		
Page 111: [156] Formatted	meilp001	11/04/2008 9:04 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm, Tabs: 2.54 cm, Left + Not at 1.9 cm		
Page 111: [157] Deleted	mifsl001	25/03/2008 11:03 AM
The Listing Authority shall require that information disclosed in a non Member or EEA State, which may be of importance for the public in the Member or EEA State is disclosed in terms of Listing Rules 8.134 to 8.141 and 8.7.		
Page 111: [158] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:52 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left		

37 Art 19, 1st para

Page 111: [159] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:42 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

d The undertakings referred to in Listing Rule 8.133 shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.121 to 8.124

Page 111: [160] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:52 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [161] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:52 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [162] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:52 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [163] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [164] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:52 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

d.1 the management company or investment firm is required to be free in all situations to exercise, the voting rights attached to the assets it manages independently of its Parent Undertaking;

8.133

Page 111: [165] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [166] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [167] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [168] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [169] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 111: [170] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 111: [171] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

d.2 the management company or investment firm is required to disregard the interests of the Parent Undertaking or of any other Controlled Undertaking of the Parent Undertaking whenever conflicts of interest arise.³⁸

8.133

Page 111: [172] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [173] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:53 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 111: [174] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:53 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [175] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:57 AM
e The Parent Undertaking of the management companies or investment firms referred to in Listing Rule 8.133

Page 112: [176] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [177] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 112: [178] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [178] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [179] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:00 AM
d shall comply with the notification requirements laid down in Listing Rules 8.12

Page 112: [180] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [181] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [182] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:01 AM
4c and shall also make a statement that, in the case of each management company or investment firm concerned, the Parent Undertaking complies with the conditions laid down in Listing Rule 8.133

Page 112: [183] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [184] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
d above.39

8.133

Page 112: [185] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [185] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:06 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [186] Formatted meilp001 11/04/2008 9:12 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [187] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:07 AM
f The Listing Authority may request the Parent Undertaking of the management companies or investment firms referred to in Listing Rule 8.133

Page 112: [188] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:18 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [189] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:08 AM
d to demonstrate that the requirements laid down in Listing Rule 8.1

Page 112: [190] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:18 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [191] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 10:18 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [192] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:29 AM
Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1.9 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 112: [193] Inserted mifsl001 27/03/2008 4:42 PM
a An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.7.10 and 12.12 where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to comply with the following conditions:

8.133

Page 112: [194] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:29 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [194] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:29 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [194] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Not Highlight

Page 112: [194] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [194] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Not Highlight

Page 112: [195] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [196] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [197] Inserted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:28 AM
a.1 in the case of an Issuer allowed to hold up to a maximum of 5 % of its own shares to which voting rights are attached, it is required to make a notification whenever that threshold is reached or crossed;

8.133a

Page 112: [198] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [198] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Not Highlight

Page 112: [198] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM
Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [199] Formatted mifsl001 28/03/2008 9:27 AM

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [199] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Not Highlight

Page 112: [199] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [199] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Not Highlight

Page 112: [199] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [200] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:30 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 3.81 cm, Right: -0.13 cm, Space After: 6 pt, Tabs: 1.9 cm, Left

Page 112: [201] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:28 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

a.3 in the case of an Issuer allowed to hold more than 10 % of its own shares to which voting rights are attached, it is required to make a notification whenever the 5 % threshold or the 10 % threshold is reached or crossed.

Page 112: [202] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [202] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Not Highlight

Page 112: [202] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [202] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:27 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [203] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:29 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

b An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rule 8.7.9 where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to disclose to the public the total number of voting rights and capital within thirty (30) calendar days after an increase or decrease of such total number has occurred.⁴⁰

Page 112: [204] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:31 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [204] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:31 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [204] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:31 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [204] Formatted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:31 AM
----------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

Page 112: [205] Inserted	mifsl001	28/03/2008 9:34 AM
---------------------------------	-----------------	---------------------------

c An Issuer whose registered office is in a non-EU or EEA State shall be considered by the Listing Authority to be subject to equivalent requirements as those prescribed by Listing Rules 8.25.1 and 8.32.1, as far as the content of the

information about meetings is concerned, where, under the law of that country, the Issuer is required to provide at least information about the place, time and agenda of meetings.⁴¹